
DATE:
TIME:
PLACE:

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

MEMBERS:

Mayor Charles Goodman
Council President Debra Jones
Vice-President Marguerite Robinson
Councilmember Michael Cox
Councilmemb er Zach Bullock
Councilmember Elihu Ross

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

AGENDA

OTHERS:

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2022
6:00 P.M.
WILLISTON CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER

Interim City Manager Terry Bovaird
City Attorney Scott Walker
City Clerk Laticia Wright
Attomey Kiersten Ballou

OPENING PRAYER AND PI, OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

ITEM - I - ADDITIONS. DF,I,ETIONS. CH GES AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

ITEM _ 2 _ PROCLAMATION RECOG G "DISABILITY EMPLOYMENT
MAYOR CHARLES

ITEM _ 3 - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

ITEM-4_ AGENDA -
a Council minutes from September 20.2022

ITEM-5_OLDBUSINESS

A. STAFF AND BOARD AND COUNCIL UPDATES
o INTERIM CITY MANAGER TERRY BOVAIRD
o STAFF
o COUNCIL

ITEM_6-NEWBUSINESS-

A. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTION: RON BEASLEY STADIUM PARK
PROPERTY

OPEN lST PUBLIC HEARING

1



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

B. IST READING :ORDINANCE 2022- : AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF
ING THE O

WILLISTON RID -2022-
ACE HARDWARE PARCEI, #05533 SUBMITTED BY THE PROPERTY

ER THE AMENDMENT
CHAPTER 166. FLORIDA STA : CHANGING THE ZONING

FOLLOWING DE ED
RESIDENTIAL DUPLEX TO INTENSIVE ON CERTAIN
LANDS WITHIN CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON.

GS RATION
ON CITY MAPS: PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. CITY PLANNER
LAURA JONES.

OPEN 2ND PUBLIC HEARING

C. 1ST READING: O INANCE 2022- 703. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON. FLORIDA. AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF THE
CITY OF WILLISTON COMPR IVE PLAN PURSUANT TO AN

COVINGTON FP
AS NUMEROUS PARCELS (ATTA AS EXHIBIT A) ON THE OFFICIAL
RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY PROPERTY APPRAISER. UNDER THE
AMENDMENT PROCEDURES ESTABLISHED IN CHAPTER 1.63 FLORIDA
STATUES: CHA THE FUTURE LAND USE CLASSIFICATION FROM

TO MIXED USE
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON. FLORIDA. DESCRIBED

ING SEVERABILITY
ON CITY MAPS. AND PROVIDING A EFFECTIVE DATE. CITY PLANNER
LAURA JONES.

CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING

D. RESOLT]TION 78: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
WILLISTON FLO

SERVICES AGREEMENT R THE CITY OF WILLISTON AND
SAFEBUILT. LLC.. FOR BUILDING ECTION SERVICES : AUTHORIZING
THE APPROPRIATE PARTTES TO SI ANY DOCUMENTS REOUIRED TO
trJ'F/-I TTtr CI I'IJ AGREEMENT ON BEHALF r)F TLIF raITV r)F \I/TT T IqTTTNI

AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTTVF, D CITY PLANNER LAURA JONES.
E. 79: A RESOLUTION OF

CITY OF WILLISTON. FI-ORIDA. APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF
T]NDERSTANI) G BETWEEN THE CITY OF TON AND 1220G
DEVELOPMENT. LLC.. REG ING UTILITY SERVICES TO
MORAI,ES/GOI) ARD RV PARK: AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATE
PARTIES TO SIGN ANY DO REOUIRED TO EXECUTE SUCH
MEMORANDIIM OF I ]NDERSTA ING ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF

2



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COLINCIL MEETING

WILLISTON: AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. CITY PLANNER
LAURA JONES A PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR BARBER.

F. RESOLUTION 2022-81: A RESOL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON. LEVY
COUNTY. FLORIDA. ESTARI,IS ING AUTHORIZATION FOR THE

CIL PRESID
PROJECT-SPECIFIC PROFES SIO CONSULTING SERVICES FOR
MISCELLANEOII S PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR THE PLANNING
DEPARTMENT WITH WRIGHT- E. INC.: AND PROVIDINC AN
EFFECTIVE DATE. CTTY LAURA JONES

G. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ON: MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT
INTERIM CITY ER TERRY BOVAIRD/PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR
DONALD BARBER.

H. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBI-E ACTION: CREDIT CARDS AND LIMIT FOR
COUNCIL PRES JONES AND INTERIM CITY MA AGER. COLINCIL
PRESIDENT DEBRA JONES.

-7-PUBLICPAR

ITEM-8-ANNOUNCEMENTS

ITEM-9-ADJOURNMENT

SCHEDULED OCTOBER 2 AT P

NEW LINK: Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone

v.nn ntral.co tn

Meeting lD:O69017976

One tap to join audio only from a smartphone:
+16504191505,, 069017976/# United States (San Mateo, CA)

Or dial:

+1 (650)4191505 United States (San Mateo, CA)

Access Code / Meeting lD:069OL7976

lnternational numbers available: https://v.rjngcentral.com/teleconference

3



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCILMEETING

YouTube Link: https://www.youtube.com/channeVUCKtl468kcNjBS2AYgOaBsRO

Clicking this link will enable you to see and hear the Council meeting

Council Meeting Procedures for members of the Public

I . All cell phones to be tumed off when entering the Council Chambers.
2. Once the audience has taken their seat and the meeting begins, there will be no talking between audience members

during the course of the Council meeting. If anyone continues to talk within the audience and is called down 3 times
during the course of the meeting, on the third time that person will be escorted out of the Council meeting;

3. The audience must be recognized by the President before being allowed to address the Council;
4. The member of the audience that is recognized will proceed to the podium, state their name for the benefit of the City

Clerk, prior to offering comments on a given matter.
5. The audience member will be limited to not more than 5 minutes to speak based on Resolution 2012-07;
6. There will be no personal attacks made by any member in the audience toward a sitting Council member and no

personal attacks made by any Council member toward a member of the audience;
7 . There will be no conversation between a member of the audience that has been recognized and any other member of the

audience when speaking while at the podium;
8. If an audience member wants to speak more than the allotted 5 minutes allowed then that person should make a request

to City Hall so that the item may be placed on the agenda.

Minutes of the City Council meeting may be obtained from the City Clerk's office. The minutes are recorded, but not transcribed
verbatim. Persons requiring a verbatim transcript may make arrangements with the City Clerk to duplicate the recordings, or
arrange to have a court reporter present at the meeting. The cost of duplication and./or court reporter will be bome by the
requesting party.
In accordance with Section 286.0105. Florida Statutes, notice is given that ifa person wishes to appeal a decision made by the
City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting they will need a record of the proceedings, and for such
purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence
upon which the appeal is based.

In accordance with Section 286.26. Florida Statutes. persons with disabilities needing special accommodations to participate in
this meeting should contact the Mayor through the City Clerk's office no later than 5:00 P.M. on the day prior to the meeting.

4



DATE:
TIME:
PLACE:

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

MEMBERS:

Mayor Charles Goodman
Council President Debra Jones
Vice-President Marguerite Robinson
Councilmember Michael Cox - absent
Councilme mb er Zach Bullock
Councilmember Elihu Ross

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

MINUTES

OTHERS

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 20, 2022
6:00 P.M.
WILLISTON CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER

Interim City Manager Terry Bovaird
City Attorney Scott Walker - absent
City Clerk Latricia Wright
Attorney Kiersten Ballou
Finance Director Stephen Bloom

OPENING PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG
Opening prayer and Pledge of Allegiance led by Mayor Goodman.

ITIONS DELETIONS CHANGES APPR AL
Correction to Item #5(E) should be "Golf'not "Gold". Remove Item #5 (A). Motion to approve
agenda with corrections by Vice-President Robinson. Seconded by Councilmember Bullock.
Motion carried 4-0.
ITEM - 2 - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - Mr. Vernon Bernard with the Williston Community
Garden thanked everyone that participated in the community garden.

ITEM - 3 - CONSENT AGENDA - Motion to approve Consent Agenda by Councilmember
Bullock. Seconded by Vice-President Robinson. Motion carried 4-0.

o Council minutqs from September 6,2022

ITEM-4-OLDBUSINESS

A. STAFF AND BOARD AND COUNCIL UPDATES
o INTERIM CITY MANAGER TERRY BOVAIRD - updated on the HR position and

the timber at the airport, along with replacing power poles along NW 7th sffeet.
STAFF - Chief Stegall announced the Fire Department did not receive the
Community Funding Project Grant.
Chief Rolls announced some of the police officers have started training with their
new shields.

Code Enforcement Officer Wayne Carson gave an updated on the old boat located on
a property the city has fines on.
COUNCIL- Attorney Ballou announced Ethic Training on December l4th atFolds &
Walker office.

a

a

a

a

5



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCILMEETING

ITEM-5-NEWBUSINESS-

A. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTION: WILLISTON RESIDENT GLINDA
ROTHSCHINK. REGARDING SEWER SERVICES. Cancelled.

B. JULY 2022 FINANCIAL REPORT. FINANCE DIRECTOR STEPHEN BLOOM. _
Finance Director reviewed July Financial report with Council

C. PURVIS. GRAY & COMPANY. LLP-SERVICES AGREEMENT. FINANCE
DIRECTOR STEPHEN BLOOM. - Motion to approve Purvis, Gray & Company
agreement, and bring back Resolution to next meeting by Vice-President Robinson.
Seconded by Councilmember Ross.

OPENING PUBLIC HEARING

D. 2nd READING ORDINANCE 2022- 698. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND
DETERMINATIONS: AMENDING SECTIONS 40-141 THROUGH 40-145 OF
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA; ADOPTING
ENACTING. AND PROVIDING FOR C UTILITY RATEMAKING BY
RESOLUTION: REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT: PROVIDING
FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. PUBLIC
WORKS SUPERVISOR DONALD BARBER. - Motion to approve Ordinance 2022-
698 by Councilmember Ross. Seconded by Councilmember Bullock. Motion carried
3-1. President Jones, Councilmember Ross and Councilmember Bullock voted
"Aye". Vice-President Robinson voted "Nay".

CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING

E. RESOLUTION 2Q22.66; A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, LEVY
COUNTY. FLORIDA. ESTABLIS G AUTHORIZATION FOR THE

PRESIDENT TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT FOR
PROFES SIONAL CONSULTING CES FOR DEVELOPMENT OF AN
ORDINANCE FOR GOLD CART AND RELIGIOUS TRANSPORTATION ON
CITY STREETS WITH WRIGHT-PIERCE. INC.: AND PROVIDING AN

BARBER. -
Motion to approve Resolution 2022-66 by Councilmember Bullock. Seconded by
Vice-President Robinson. Motion carried 4-0.

F. RESOLUTION 2022-67: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON. LEVY
COUNTY, EI.ORIDA., ESTABLISHING AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CITY OF

6



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COLINCIL MEETING

WILLISTON COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT WITH
AFSCME ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL EMPLOYEES; AND PROVIDING
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR DONALD BARBER. -
Motion to approve Resolution 2022-67 by Vice-President Robinson. Seconded by
Councilmember Bullock. Motion carried 4-0.

G. RESOLUTION 2022-68: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON. LEVY
EOUMY, FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CITY OF
WILLISTON COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF
TWO RECLOSER REPLAEE\4ENT PARTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE. INTERIM CITY MANAGER TERRY BOVAIRD/PUBLIC WORKS
SUPERVISOR DONALD BARBER. - Motion to approve Resolution 2022-68by
Councilmember Ross. Seconded by Vice-President Robinson. Motion carried 4-0.

H. RESOLUTION 2022-69: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, LEVY
COUNTY. FLORIDA. AMENDING THE INFRAMARK. LLC CONTRACT TO
PROVIDE FOR AN EXTENSION OF THE TERM OF THE EXISTING
CONTRACT: PROVIDING AN DATE. FINANCE DIRECTOR
STEPHEN BLOOM. - Motion to approve Resolution 2022-69 by Vice-President
Robinson. Seconded by Councilmember Bullock. Motion carried 4-0.

I. RESOLUTION 2022-70: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF WILLISTON. FLORIDA, TO APPROVE THE TERMINATION
AGREEMENT REGARDING THE PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION GRANT
AGREEMENT EXECUTED ON MAY 12,2022, FDOT PROJECT NUMBER
42547 I -2 WILLISTON MUNICIPAL ORT _ TRANSIENT TURF APRON
PROJECT. AIRPORT MANAGER BENTON STEGALL. Motion to approve
Resolution 2022-70 by Councilmember Bullock. Seconded by Vice-President
Robinson. Motion carried 4-0.

J. RESOLUTION 2022-71: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION GRANT
AGREEMENT FOR FINANCIAL PROJECT NUMBER 4444473-I-94-23
REGARDING THE WILLISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT - NEW HANGAR
BUILDINGS; AUTHORIZING APPROPRIATE PARTIES TO SIGN ANY

OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE
AIRPORT MANAGER BENTON STEGALL. - Motion to approve Resolution
2022-7I by Councilmember Bullock. Seconded by Vice-President Robinson.
Motion carried 4-0.

7



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

K. RESOLUTION 2022-72: A RESOL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON. LEVY
COUNTY. A. TO BE KNOWN AS THE NORTHERN TURNPIKE
EXTENSION "NO BUILD RESOLUTI N' REOUESTING THE HONORABLE
GOVERNOR RON DESANTIS ANI) SECRETARY OF THE FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION TO DIRECT THE DEPARTMENT TO
ADOPT A "NO BUILD'' OPTION THE NORTHERN TURNPIKE
EXTENSION THA MAY BE PROPOSED T RUN THROU GH OR NEAR THE
CITY OF WILLISTON. LEVY . FLORIDA AMONG OTHER
COMMUNITIES T WOULD ALSO BE NEGATIVELY IMPACTED BY THE

AND PROVID
PLANNER LAURA JONES. - Motion to approve Resolution 2022-7 2 by
Councilmember Ross. Seconded by Vice-President Robinson. Motion carried 4-0.

L. RESOLI]TION 73: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON.
FLORIDA. APPOINTING TERRY OVAIRD AS THE INTERIM CITY
MANAGER. REP EALING ALL RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT. AND
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. COUNCIL PRESIDENT DEBRA
JONES. - Motion to approve Resolution 2022-73 by Councilmember Bullock.
Seconded by Vice-President Robinson. Motion carried 4-0.

ITEM - 6 - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - Jazmon Lovenguth, Barbie Ocasio thanked the
Council for considering the "No Toll Resolution".

ITEM 7-A OUNCEMENTS - Veterans Parade November llth in Williston. Hispanic
Festival September 24th. Second Budget Hearing September 29th at 5:30. Councilmember
Bullock asked if we could send out notices to people that have not paid their bill by the cutoff
date. Interim City Manager said a city employee will be calling the ones that have not paid hy the
cutoff date.

ITEM - 8 - ADJOURNMENT - Motion to adjourn at 8:02 by Councilmember Bullock.
Seconded by Councilmember Ross. Motion carried 4-0.

NEXT SCHEDULED COI]NCII, G OCTOBER 4. 2022- AT 6:00 P.M.

8



Date: October 412022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: Stadium View Acres

REQUESTED BY: RON BEASLEY PREPARED BY: RON BEASLEY

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: Stadium View Acres

LEGAL REVIEW:

FISCAL IMPACTS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

ATTACHMENTS:

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

9



Petition presented to the City of Williston City Council, Willistonn Florida
for and by the property owners of lots 'l -4 known as Stadium View Acres

1. Reference
2. Legal description
3. Purpose of discussion
4. Opening Statement
5. Basis for petition
6. Exhibits

1. Reference:

Stadium View Acres, four lots located on south side of SW sth Avenue and SW 3rd
Street in the city of Williston, Florida, plat book 11, page 42.

Owners: Jay Ronald and Jane Beasley, lots 1 and 2.
David and Miheala Butts, lot 3.
Craig and Heather Troup, lot 4.

2. Legal description:

Lots 1 ,2,3 and 4 known as Stadium View Acres, a Subdivision according to the
plat as recorded in Plat Book 1 1 , Page 42, in the Public Records of
Levy County, Florida. Parcel lD number 22226-002-00.

3. Purpose of discussion

The purpose of this discussion is to request the City Council approve a replat of
Stadium View Acres removing the requirement of a sidewalk from the plat for Stadium
View Acres that currently states that the owners of the properties that constitute
Stadium View Acres will be responsible for the construction and bear the cost of a 5
foot wide sidewalk on the south side of SW sth Avenue on the city's side of the
easement abutting SW sth Avenue.

*
Refer to the plat section attached for reference to the notation regarding the

construction of a 5 foot sidewalk along the south side of SW sth Avenue on the city
easement side of the street.

10



4. Opening statement:

As new citizens of Williston we hope to enjoy the community that we chose to build our
new homes and future in. We hope to explore our neighborhood, make new friends
and enjoy the sites and sounds with our newly chosen community. Sidewalks will be
an important part of this process.

These sidewalks otfer a means to walk to a neighbors home, check out the sights and
sounds along the routes to nearby neighborhoods or stroll downtown to visit a
restaurant or shop at one of the the many stores in Williston.

Sidewalks serve a very important purpose. A means to protect pedestrians, bicyclists,
wheelchair and handicapped individuals by safely separating them from vehicles that
travel the avenues and streets within Williston.

It's easy to see that safety for sidewalk users has been priority in Williston. Proper
crossing markers and traffic signals allow citizens to pass through intersections safely
throughout the city.

In the case of the sidewalk noted on the Stadium View Acres plat just the opposite is in
the making.

We would like to present our case against the sidewalk proposed in the Stadium View
Acres plat as adopted approximately 4 years ago.

5. Basis for this petition

1. Cost - The cost of the sidewalk as required by the City of Williston has to be factored
into the construction cost of each home to be built on the 4 lots. Since Stadium View
Acres was "Platted" approximately 4 years ago and the sidewalk requirement added to
the new plat the cost of construction, labor and materials has risen exponentially.
Adding the cost of the sidewalk to the cost of home construction will effectively force
us, the property owners, into unnecessary increased mortgage costs, increase our
financial burden or require the choice of homes to be less than desired.

2. Functionality and Safety Concerns - The plat notes that the sidewalk will begin at the
intersection of SW 5th Avenue and SW 3rd Street and will run along the south side of
SW sth Avenue on the city's side of the easement then abruptly end at the western
property line of Lot 4.

Discussions with McMillen Surveying as well as local residents raise serious safety and
functionality concerns that the proposed sidewalk will impose.

11



1. Crosswalk markings and lighting do not exist at the SW Sth Avenue and SW 3rd
Street intersection.

2. The sidewalk would abruptly end at the south western property line of Lot 4. A
crossing to the northern side of SW sth Avenue does not serve pedestrians, bicycle
riders or wheelchair users due to the lack of a continuing sidewalk on the north side
of SW 5th Avenue. Also, the absence of crosswalk markings and traffic lighting
would potentially create serious safety concerns.

3. Vehicle tratfic - SW Sth Avenue and SW 3rd Street are used heavily for the after
school pickup of children attending Joyce Bullock Elementary School. This traffic
utilizes not only the roadway so that other tratfic can navigate through the SW sth
Avenue and SW 3rd Street intersection, the property easements and sidewalks are
used for parking as parents make their way toward the schools pickup area.

Adding the proposed sidewalk would provide even more unwanted easement
parking space for student pickup traffic. ln addition, due the decreased amount of
parking space for stadium events the proposed sidewalk opens up the possibility of
street side parking in front of Stadium View Acres property owners homes.

4. Furthermore, it has come to the our attention that a precedent has been set by the
City of Williston for the exclusion of sidewalk requirements from plats as can be
seen in the supplied plats for the following properties;

Property 1: Oak Villa, replat of lots 5,6,7, and 8, Block 10 (Plat book 12, page 4).
Property 2 :East Williston, replat of lots 15 &22, Block 5 (Plat book 11, page 54).
Property 3: Pinky, Plat book 11, page 56.
Property 4: Cottage Cove North Phase 3, lncluding a portion of Kavanaugh Acres

Minor Subdivision (Plat book 11, Page 48).
Property 5: Levy Pet Project, (Plat book 12, Page 5).

(See the attached copies of plats listed above that were created since Stadium View Acres
was "Replatted")

6. Exhibits:

1. Sectional copy of the Stadium View Acres plat.
2. Listing of applicable State of Florida Statues.
3. Digital Google Earth markups of Stadium View Acres with notes (on supplied thumb

drive).
4. Copies of the plats as noted above.

12



We, the undersigned have reviewed this petition/letter and are in agreement with the intent
and content herein:

Jay Ronald Beasley and Jane Beasley, Lots 1 & 2:

{

Prinl name

Jone 9eaelev
Print name

David and !![i-he.ajg Butts, Lot 3:

David Bults

Print name

Mihaela Butts

Print name

Craig and Heather Tioup, Lot 4:

T
Print name

lr ,Oh
Print name

$ignature

&tn - An^tl--

Date signed

tlq t 2a7,7.
Oate signed

Aug 09 202211:50PDT

Date signed

Aug 09 2022 1 9:55 EDT

Date signed

U I
Signature

p**L gl-ht-
Signature

A{1f'.*1.." p,^l\,,=

Signature

Signature

4an,f

g' '& ^

Date signed

sJblau
Date signed

L

Sifiarure

13



14



The 2c.22 Florida Statutes
Titte Xll

MUNICIPALITIES

2022 Go

Chapter 177

LAND BOUNDARIES

CHAPTER 177 LAND BOUNDARIES

PART I PLATTING
(ss. 1 77 .O11-177 .1 51 )

PART ll COASTAL ,IMPPING (ss. 177,25-177.4O,

PART lll RESTOMIION OF CORNERS (ss. 177.5O1-1TT.510)

PART I PLATTING

View Entire Chapter

177.011 Purpose and scope of part l.
177.021 Legat status of recorded ptats.
177.031 Definitions.
177.441 Boundary survey and titte opinion or property information
report required . 177.051 Name and reptat of subdivision.

177.061 Qualification and statement required.
177.071 Approvat of ptat by governing bodies.
177.Offi Dedication and approvat.
177 .485 Ptatted streets; reversionary clauses.
177 .486 lnsta[ation of cut-de-sacs.
177.091 Ptats made for recording.
177.101 vacation and annulment of ptats subdividing [and.

15



177.107 Ctosing and abandonment of roads; optional conveyance to a
community development district; traffic control jurisdiction.

177.111 lnstructions for fiting ptat.

177.121 Misdemeanor to motest monument or deface or destroy map
or ptat. 177.131 Recordation of the Department of Transportation
official right-of-way maps and other governmentat right-of-way maps.
177.132 Preservation of unrecorded maps.
177.141 Affidavit confirming error on a recorded ptat.
177.142 Renaming of subdivisions and streets on ptats and maps.

16



l];$7 7;,/s777s7 L-)-%"r"*Jtrii j,-
t*ffi

i-{)r i-
i *01 /i"it 1

;- '-' I .)

til(:iA.r
l.iir ;

i ,"1fli &c. i
i"-f'r i

i(lr{]i At:.r

\t;1ri !lr', .'i i-t ,,

:._ * r Iri ;,1i--t ri

,1, i.- 
,, .::: i ,:l

;'ffi ij,;,,i lf. ,,'l 
';,' ',,-

.,.I . :;:r,i,j

i r, i ) .,:r-: r

l:i 'l :,rf ri!! riijt

:!''i , '-.3 -- ,-.

l

a,i

ii

I

{

i
L
t;

;jl

rt
,:,

i

I

t

.t..5j.---
I

!i|n:r:i'i

i

';aeu;.1 ,:\$ ;_'a.t,. " li

:i,Lh 9,,9"

d*{li *'-, +#-"e!#"{

,:'.,-fiai-r:^--"' "'
{oln

"..&+,.;- 
it'\i , a0

,:.Jll i l

k {,*' $&";,llru*
n---

:ibe- , r ft, a -r. 
lttatlr'it' 

.". . -

si4

;ri:-:* ,fl!" 1-::3-: ,a--u: ;'i,*:-.*-.ti":--*'f4 in /e.t 0

17



. Jr'rl{ a

',qd.e ryv*,?

:r.4,.ni'r.?:.iil.

r:'l p rli ! --t #.{"r !i

::*rrriri,rt.. rff;?.;.,

'fi

tq$f; 'l:r
qV r$c'".$

qf 'n

.au ;i;:iti,.!'

{-6- f
i'

s--l l'llllSirfql+rq
.: ljil,l:t

.,.:.-"_-..;,::-

k,'i,#.*ii; ,.

-l,#
d!:Ptrri"ri:r ,,rd*.1

.rtert r!8: ! qr j !

i 'l

. ,"r
. rilr
' 1ld
. 

'"1

I

j

:"9

;'3
-1

I:

'";; F

. t: I

. "i;: '
,- ll' :.' .

l:

Lta
Ir!i
4 t.

,i
-.. 

1

l'--n"

rr-?*--

l. +r- .:.,'.riid,

"";a.i..' 
lr! r:!ir .:l '!

f?;{yf{i '(E pun J-I s?0? {a ryyd.strp
uaaslJJlfl4, X$'nE,

r{tr.\.l. .;:i,,-:,r,-!::F {jJ,:|r,i,.i .;. i j*$ i r, ;r.r l

L';,-"!: l. r1nti"'..i ", r";iri.!r.\ 
'-'r::.. 

:-J

. , .r,rli: .i s *: "'tj , -r.

tt{}l I ll.1t I yrl.r ilr,ltj"t !;!11irn'' r}iilrri ) r1.tr-,:t.'ili!,hil{ f,!?i{ id,.r-{ t:r.!,
aaa :{ r, t;irlt {1_.x J-ri;&.,riJ.r} 1}.1 t? \B rr{}.rt , }l.li\l

,tr,r'.i ,. .-,J:i-1,. ,r, r ,r, !.\: : . ;:;: .; l

18



+.?1,':t i l' nil {.rdrw$ !}6b r:{}dli RRv*i S*r.*

l*t trn t &, OR El{: t I P6: 56. Re$nLd I }16'?0At I I : l{,tlr'
n*r lJo,Oo SusI J^ Shitp,{tslJl n{ thr {lts[it f ad t.e.1 }.L Dt|l8-i (:Xert lult^list

Jh.
tir

L-s.

tr&s$

l.lcffi4{*
rw6o&

@

ainQy
dlre; s,'ie ,,:r-isr,im J;* lr^iS.wrq .i'/

G,4+.| /.1r"i*Mtr {{:*r lI,jT.s
Cif.I i iti}&*pa i'-.w*4-r,or a+!p' -54a1:

r*ar{'q! 1E

,t
;i
itlt
l

ll

It

!F+

LOY I

S 579 A{*Esi

MFFi*F& lRrylSJ

tls*dH6tu S i*s,!S 1{*l.tfui1,th*S r:lls Ary
1t b. @ ft&. E|ts. b'{,!{* t*$ &*.d x ea*.&sdtu(:]ffis *Bsrs*d*k1!t,tff rw
k^il*b!ffi rlFhs{q hhsss t{dsri4gi}#
3l .llfurd.&_??!4 b'@ ws w I,,"k r.'*ed$.tr
* br M*, *i#t t i4 srkd.MAasvk *s!!e
hryidhAq !MffiM*rymrfu(.-ett
r$t4r S. .'g 6(* .i.il*{.trys.t,rsdh6* llos.* hrnscll!.**. *ry S !{, rA h x h *S qh..r.nv h,{
h d.w SSs Cs t# a**, e *6Aeigra$"{n6sF&edrDhd.q h {#'sd2r Oi b* mSq* X o*s
srsq rj& d r&5 H s* ldd, Bdq w vriu }t.wg@ tW" 

'w 
lw$*g* tff*d& *r@.df, k_ t

&di7i S*Btua' hMgfs**d

1r
\r ',:x**?*"3

irc!-:ffis
: !g!:L- ,_.
:HFac*
: l8J1J&- ^*

jt
:E

s

u
,u

1,, l-
ilr li
lriH

I

il
il
rl
f,
6
nh

l"r

LST 3
s rri? aqRf*r

$alril'z$A ro.H'(u)
3&st'tJ"a !o.m'aol

$:trs't$A r?.ot'(I)
st.t7'a"ri 2tal'{D)

+..i&

tI
t

s.

\
{aftft d9*}

ffi

t:r44/tk{^e
:,l3F'#"Ae *S"l ffiL.ftIftf&ff.s*--"

A'a*$-+-

#eF***dr

f,ffi#":r..4r:1*i
4gp**.1"'t*5*-ga,r-,

Nid4*ectSir rsaqF

**Sd*cj".,*-".:.:&."r

--. * r\*rr

Ltt-re- *.JE- -

g4&b4^ +\- ".-s*-;.?; }lj{E-,

.$-

,ifirtr i"t

tl*S**'sidJSaakdliss{4m$scr$+*dfr 5l

19



i\sl X 1 r-1. iiR nA ! I l'!; 4, Fi{,,r,*,t t:,t{.;t!!if i I qO p1t
tl{:\.it ,Frt)r4nr I \r!!ll!.{'t,rr'!1r{{t*-{rrfri. l.crrtl.ri,t{ $r}rkfi{.h|N115,\i"\i

Corracr CoVE Nonrg Pryasr J
fil+cru*ilyc * Poqrldlv sr KeyAtld#6h .d;nrsl

,Ylrvt"rli S*spl ylst oru
I !i i,j rr.\r':-li!:.t ij, j|({,rJ\/rt;,r r- i,,:.1,i .,'j r,_i. ,/ i j.n;.,.1,

{ i:r ,'l ii rl.ri,tl,'t i ,iir'llt, ,rI 1 r...1 {;.1.,. rt, /:r1i,.:i-,

tL1
.t /;.

" ;\^

I -. - *"j_ i':i - 
"-l - -- .,-"

;i.,

1,

.'-r"1;1-' 'r ""f;r.
q ... .. ", ^.".t .- " -*

s
ilt.\
t I

i.-.r::.
I'iri-1ii.ittr

'.il;prt r I frc i!{i.

::i::i'". \.

: i'-('T ti.- I {,r ll!

LOT q

20



il: l'?i 6 ]i:: &t1
L Mrr,{* iTS i:tk'ai i{c+rdb $o{i4

h.'Sft * 31, On AX: 32 r{;; {,Icsktt l,'?srit}i: ::13 Fl!
nrr l3),{t{ nwr J. Stipo.{:'ttl {* rb. flnt$r Ce{ f-61 FL tktrdr- {krt ,u!.{lisl

@

t4h.!r, Vry

Oo{v'iffa Wgp{at
af Lots 5, 6, v, aru{ a, r&{ot{to

lr
!r
.t

l

ir
ta
.t i
irn
r!

,!

aiw "r rj5*s i: ilEqe.{ l-1 t-?iq{t i1*r* I r r"*u,l
:-yl,! {-tP**q ier,rnd. f'drp. i-r6niil

SE ].t, i.)Eb{€

i

{
r I.rt
!t

I
I

kw 1** !r*!.Fs tul
i*..( t. ss.i:M lt. |eds

6\&&r @:qr:&b* i *ei
Msd!*ktlr.M

ffr.Fffi s-.s

ffi rr*.

I
!::

(

S€ 5?fi Avgkr*
il
t:

f,
l(

'l
,T

:T!Lt[.f i*F--

W'g*.

k@--*

lPhn-* ftCd:,31],i]?J
g,i4;*u***t{,i*+.

LFffi cf (Ir].td*rq!f
&l,*'th*rd-ink

* rir*Fkl.+ isl;;

#t*t&*,-- - "-.'*tt*

ffiffi]

ef

Et6a s$nr Mddt.€4ii&3!l$rab,e{:irtr*xft!ffi,.bqrF&4#4ra{if,*:fient{f,neanj*$€#6:*ktu ,r
t r{*

21



rd* .rr fiP ts'l:

;.r4t* :1{*t

!liri.rrs

f,evj {Pet Waject

l'

r

tl tg('?t'?f't .lf5.6?'f0)
i,rrrtr51 rr trr* :\ir,'rfi*r'rt ll,l o/.{irl*n ti

?i'*d56i I.l .trru:li, 'f.iragd lE {ra{r,
{. rfr 4I'ti.t/Jirfptr, .l,3I d'}srf 1; 'ItrLfi

t"
t €'T L) :.i s
: Lr -d,

1q;.";";.;\
.{t.4s*-t* I

|---, *'-*-*..*,
,". il;:J'''r;ffi.

I

stY -5f( avrtJur
urra,ral JzA grl0l

l* " _ ry.* y_ -* . - J:::ji:v-gji,..;:- =*" _^* _

ri,!d I
i I 90 ..lrfft

!

S$ty*Yrsc,9rt

'ila.:a- '

,t

€

_t

I

i
t:r

i:i'

i;
:er

i:i
f;ii
llr -= ".-t;.

t;

, dr'.isli,e:

&
UI

:i

3

Qv
t

ls

ht

,k3ffi i,)SS 3*i. rJ r*'.ri
I r*5 Lr ffi i t* $"#r il * tu irr$'!s

rrdtukdlls 1rd*bess1# 1rd
ka fl {. 1l3@,e i] gsd {S 165't,rrq
a{di :! F,s brG fh:ft resr*r *Lr:t61e

J;
,N

II

I
I
t::
i
i

i
L

i, I
It

i+ I iK{ / &*s\F ilii{*'jis s! ii* Srl*!*i
usd :r t4 Sll {.,t W.s.A.13.tit !,:!r {.!s*.
f kjn hS S 4r'}{:iM Frq& !l sl$
e. *{q tu}*, 4 Jsd fl* r'4 S'ka b
W i.i k b & f *t FjP d *&t lrFrt tl t rqMt
r.r r i sS trd 9*!s a iF 1-*g F$fr{ftij_ {w
.vn, d, ! a_ *t{"* l$ -r'\.!6 rt rd: e f
sLtri MJ fu4 *"s. .rio,S W,- gd{d ri A(
4!!B :.{ S& ?t ffi* E-. }X i' ,S h 9*
lHi, ntfi d*rMi!k $& S arr .ri$;4,i
$t 9\}e td :s,e {R 6,d w" RlA w qf j
d*6? iw :i.iE lr 1# rr&B6l qJt$ d d| ed
ri g r&&e! s) 11 flfqE s t4 ,r*cg 14 fre*ffi
?S H{W *- *{* st Srd ndd a( s' +a
l.:l' I H * 1* :s$.-rt !$ *i,lur:;F
g6!] Si{bii

t.
.t
i

:

l. JJ.l ,;fr:r'rt

t?1ipE

{jruitirr.!r*l}

ti:I:.f ::;::*:::- ::]:'
: iua. .11.1.it.

"'ir.4**

,tu-ki tFr+rF.N ;*d.*, {

g.*.,l:;$.*s153.g9.tr'*,

fu{*4-t*nw
x,#i i; '.,-ftl|Iitr'i.
LilalLWMr*Hl-ik &iw

l'ftt 'Boo[ t7. iPme 5
.iltrri Clu.r ;rf Orts:

i s{riii,lr,'; lfl.tito +d
{nd;4{ ,'::{!JLsuN

4***.,"hl8

d tu r* h*r,'
sr 1*rs.l{d-*tut* r16

*4,$orrofag
ffiTlqSsr-

i"efi::s {'{.ir'r !tr'}*

Y*:i.';Yr;"J;-i;'":.Y 1. ': *"

fiffiw;'*,,

*$,w

rsitff s

I

*qb4{4retr

{fffft]#s*: :,ir;li"'

22



October 4,2022

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: RZ-2022-04 Ace Hardware (Parcel # 05533-000-00)

PREPARED BY: Laura Jones, City Planner

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

First Public Hearins

Rezone (Parcel # 05533-000-00). This property is located at 33 SW l't Ave. Kennard Ace
Hardware is the property owner and this re-zone has been initiated by the property owner to change
the zoning.

Currentlythis parcel consists of one lot on.40 acres andthe zoning is Residential Duplex. This
rezone plat proposes concturency for this parcel and making it Commercial Intensive.

Approval of this rezoning complies with the Land Development Code; therefore, staff recommends
approval

LEGAL REVIEW: NA

FISCAL IMPACTS: None

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed on 9127122
recommend approval to City Council.

ATTACHMENTS: Application
Ordinance 702

ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

23



ORDINANCE NO.7O2

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WlttlSTON, FLORIDA; AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP
OF THE CITY OF WlttlSTON, FIORIDA; PURSUANT TO APPLICATION RZ-2O22-O4, ACE

HARDWARE (PARCEL #0553300000) SUBMTTTED By THE pROpERTy OWNER AND UNDER THE

AMENDMENT PROCEDURES ESTABTISHED lN CHAPTER 165, FLORIDA STATUTES; CHANGING
THE ZONING CTASSIFICATION ON THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY FROM RESIDENTIAL
DUPLEX TO COMMERCIAL INTENSIVE ON CERTAIN LANDS WITHIN THE CORPORATE TIMITS OF

THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA; PROVIDING SEVERABIIITY; PROVIDING FOR

INCORPORATION ON CITY MAPS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, Chapter L66, Florida Statutes, empowers the City Council of the City of
Williston, Florida, hereinafter referred to as the City Council, to prepare, adopt, implement and
amend A Comprehensive Plan;

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida, did on May 7,2002, validly
approve and adopt the City of Williston Land Development Regulations; and

WHEREAS, an application, RZ-2O22-O4, for an amendment, as described below, to the
Current Zoning Map of the City of Williston Comprehensive Plan has been filed with the City;

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Williston, designated as the
Local Planning Agency, did hold the required public hearing, with public notice having been
provided, on said applications for amendments, as described below;

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Williston reviewed and
considered all comments received during said public hearings and the Rezoning Report
concerning said applications for amendments, as described below and recommended approval
of the above reference applications to the City Council;

WHEREAS, the City Council did hold the required public hearings, under the provisions of
the amendment procedures established in Chapters 153 and 156, Florida Statutes, on said

applications for amendments, as described below, and at said public hearing, the City Council
reviewed and considered all comments received during the public hearing, including the
recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, serving also as the Local Planning
Agency.

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined and found said applications for amendments,
as described below, to be consistent with the Future Land Use Element objectives and policies,

and those of other affected elements of the City's Comprehensive Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITV COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

24



Section 1 Application RZ-2O22-O4 by property owner to amend the City's Zoning Map
by changing the zoning classification on the following described property from
Residential Duplex to Commercial lntensive is hereby approved.

Section 2. Severability. lf any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any
court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional or unenforceable, then all
remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 3. Future Land Use. The Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map designation
changes enacted herein shall be incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan Future Land

Use Map within 48 hours of this ordinance becoming effective.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately
Passed on first reading, this 4th day of October, 2O22.

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED, with a quorum present and voting by the City Council of the City of
Williston, Florida, after properly dispensing with the second reading, on final reading this 16th
day October,2022.

ATTEST: CITY OF WILLISTON

LATRICIA WRIGHT
CITY CLERK

DEBRA JONES

PRESI DENT, CITY COUNCI L

KIERSTEN BALLOU

CITY ATTORNEY

25



C-'r*-, ? b* uzil* o F (N r rrt >pn,
I

{z**,*r- fr--Ahahrtu ffo<- ls zzTuz_g,r)*7 *
7aw',*7 Chsagz 1tt OFSSSoooao 38 sw )*rAilL

{*A Vz s tb! ns -, 7^&,-1, Oun* )au

26



Application Rcceived Dare :

Application Number:

llcaring Dat€:

Hearing Type:

Note$:

Area for Olllclal Ure

Applicantrs Informatlon

\" ":,ta ttzt dn*&arvaflott,,
Mailing ilrJdress; 1n 1 tg6 g
Telephone Number:4;;l . l a lno -q O bfi

,
r.Dl€/1.: Atz.l,n

Email Address:

Property Information

Addrcss: 54! )6-,tai LLl<,ro<
Lesat awner : fu4 * ge e fr32 /fu Bt h> t,
Tax Pnrcel ID#; 3t*(w-&
Legal Ducription

A=pr-fcc-h,rD
of parcel: (attach exhibit if necessary)

lurent Land Use/Zoning Map designation: !/i r 
j)

Requested Land Use/Zoning Map Desigration:1 74f)

t-9-2olz-
-t/-

Date

Zonng Change Application
Page 2 of2

27



*Ek-*
bG-b

hJbi
h'-bhJ

l@lh

-b-st-

bg*h'

ry"P of rBowtarl Survel
Lots 10 orrdl1rBhcN4, t'tlilfisnq CyngAsecrion 6:lownsfrip tS

Soutfi, WBe 1g{Eosit, L6r, eomty, fforitt" r
a-

lIDxI /+6Y AI

I

\
td
d*t

El
IHt4?4r[Ia

IlcrcrFdon: (ORB 1€2, pc tgg)
l-d I 0 and I 1 , Bbd( 4. C.S. Nobb rhp of

l\lkon, acco.dl! !o ft! Pbt t'l.rcot ar l!@dcd ir
Phl Bookl. p.g! 1, of Ol. tubt R@r& otldry
Coo0ty, Flodd..

4g

(D-]tr

1
rtrd6'

I

g\tlu' r#(p)

-LfF.Effi5?q:3.'El-.ffi
g
,
1rt-l

llate:

t:-b

ra
E

1

o
?

e3

\
ir

B
k{
Bl-
hrar

\

\
1g3F

ffl
rn
-t

\
I

\

Yftfnt

5.

tI
ogtf lc

lrffi
r ilID. G

Jsgsa'--

QrrccfO55334&N
OAWfrct"s* (Overat[)

?iI
v
\

i
rE:
nL\ I)t-

1infi=Zoft

28



r ^\!l .lr\l.,!. rt r ltlr{L, I(ltr UKN lu:
Jado D. Bailoy
Bankers Titlc of thc Nattne Coasf Inc.
P. O. Eox 1260
OldToua, FL32680

File Numbor: 8ZZ?

Special Warranty Deed
This Special lVananty Deed madcthi sMay lb -Z0l? A.D. By
5*:g-9"lnuntty, Banlq * Flortda Uantring corporarion

ffiffi#t^HffH#*H$.:ffiffi.#'i;*j?nil:l to:trr crricnan4 Frorida s2644,hereinafter canod rhc grantor(s), to
whose post office addross is: p. o. Box 450, errln r, floriaa 326l6,hersinafrer ca[ed thc grantoc(s):

,'ffilffi: Tl *'lm :frH3',#l;ffiffillt#dc all tho putic to this insrrurnsnr urd rho hcirl rcgar rcprescaradvcs and assisns or

witno'9sett' 6at &e grantor, for and in consideration ofthc srm of ronDollars, (g10.00) and other valuable sonsidemtions, receipt
ffi:Xmffi|.ffiH'iff*trgffiLtflrl;;;it;.r#,^#i*,,,i,u,os,.oou"J,*aconnrms,,t",r,,s.*.;"u

rotc l0 and 1l' Block 4, c's' NoBLE I}{AP oF Tvru.IsToN, according to the plat thercof, es recorded in platBook I, page 1, of the publle Records of Lery Couoty, nirii*

Parcel ID Numbon 0553$00&00

Togetherwittr all iho tenemcnts, hcrcditanent"r and appurtcnances thoroto belonging or in anywise appcraining.

To Have cnd to IfoH, thq samo in foo simple forover.

And tte grantor hereby covon0nts with said granhe that &c gnntor is lawRrily seized of said land in fec simplc; that thegnntor has good right and lawfirl auttro;ty to sell and con-voy said lan{ dst rhe grantor hueby warrure and forovor dsfonds the rightand titlo to 0rc abovs'dascribed roal proporty unto tho Graurtecs .g.ii rt n chlme of all persons, claiming by, througtr or underGrantor's, but not otherwise.

In Witness Whereof, &e gantorhas causcd these prosonts to ba oxecutnd in ib uamo, and its corporatc seal to be
hereunto affte4 by ia proper offioers thereunto duly autlorized, tbe day and yoar frst abovo written.

sealed and deltvered in ow presence:

rn. Drummond Community Benk, a Florlde banklng corporafion

Name lrc. "Creus

Witness
Wihcsr Prlntcd Eea-(

Stato ofFlorida
County oflcvy

The foregoing instrumcnt was aclrrowlcdgcd beforo me ftis lL day of May, 2017, by Scott Guthrie as Presidcnt of Drumnond
Conmudty Banlc, a Florida 

*1mf;#:Toration, 
*" -r1i Fglonallv lsrown to me or who has produced

By:
Ih

Gsthrle
Presldent

29



october 4,2022

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: Proposed Berklev Oaks Planned Develonment

REQUESTED BY: Laura Jones, City Planner

Applicant: Covington FPC, LLC / JBPro

PUBLIC HEARING FIRST READING RZ.2O22-05

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

LOCATION MAP/AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH

NORTH

SUMMARY

The proposed Berkley Oaks Subdivision project is a rezoning application RZ-2022-05 for an
approximately 47.9 *l- acre residential property located in Williston, Florida on SW 7th just west
of Williston Middle High School. This proposed project will result in residential subdivision with
248 dwelling units-148 of which will be single-family dwelling units and 100 will be multi-
family paired housing dwelling units. The density for the proposed project will be 5.1 8 dwelling
units per acre. Ingress / egress is on NE 30 St and SW 7th St OS HWY 41)

The rezoning request from R-l to PD is required for four reasons l) the current zoning does not
allow for a mix of single and multi-family residential dwelling units, 2) the desired density is
greater than is allowed in the R-l zoning category, 2) the proposed number of units are more than
the established plat, and 4) the site standards need to be modified from the city's standards as well
as from the established plat. The Master Use Plan proposed through this application provides

L

30



October 4,2022

standards that addresses each of these reasons and, in doing so, enables the city to achieve its
planning goals.
Proposed Uses

The PD Master Use Plan exhibits identify the layout of proposed the Berkley Oaks Subdivision
PD. The central features of the plan are 248 single- and multi- family residential units, which are
intended to be market rate housing.

1) Allowable uses in the Berkley Oaks Subdivision shall be:
a. Single-Family Detached
b. Multi-Family Attached Paired Housing

2) The acreage for each of these uses is shown in the table below:

Use Units Gross Acreage of Land Net Acreage of Land

Single-Family
Detached Dwelling

148 34.52 21.53

Multi-Family Paired Housing
Dwelling Units

100 13.38 8.36

Gross Acreage of Land: Includes common lands-e.g.: stormwater, roadways, utility infrastructure
Net Acreage of Land: Does not include common lands.

Chapter 60 -Zoning; Article XIII Planned Development (PD), states the intent of the PD district is
to permit planned developments intended to:

1. Encourage the development of planned residential development of land;
2. Encourage flexible and creative concepts of site planning;
3. Preserve the natural amenities of the land by encouraging scenic and functional open

areas;
4. Accomplish a more desirable environment than would be possible through strict

application of the minimum requirements of these land development regulations;
5. Provide for an efficient use of land resulting in smaller networks of utilities and streets

and thereby lowering development and housing costs; and
6. Provide a stable environmental character compatible with surrounding areas.

The PD will meet these criteria in that it will promote mixed use land development patterns which
combine single family residential and multi-family uses to achieve an attractive, well integrated,
and pedestrian and transit friendly environment.

Original concept and new concept are attached.

2

31



October 4,2022

Original Concept:

---C+#)--+
stcnoff7, towNtH a I3500It. uNGt ltt^g

rrvYcouNrY, noilb^ kcl+{

i;

;:g'

New Concept- Planned Development

T
l'.-

lt

rl: :l:i :iil l l lT:l:l f.lfrxs

tur-Lr d 3.&SIS
E 

' 
s-E! <i.!{

E

Ei-lff

.....@ iBPro
mffitmffisffilffiBB

SSqhlhrfA6W6*rll}rtrlt|4ffin

-E'l4tr$-d&
dkS6*rd#

PRE.JVINAFY DE1ELCPVENT PLAN
. 

AE ENGINEERNG INC
fiar5rtlv,[: :L

BERKLEY OAKS
SUBDMSICN PD-1

3

32



October 4,2022

LEGAL RE,VIEW: None

FISCAL IMPACTS: None

RECOMMENDED ACTION: The preliminary development plan proposed by this PD zoning
application meets the City's Land Development Regulations. Planning and Zoning Commission
reviewed on9127l22 and recommended to City Council for approval.

ATTACHMENTS: Application

ACTION:

APPROVED DISAPPROVEI)

4

33



Berkley Oaks

Subdivision

Rezone from
Residential-1 (R-1)

to
Planned Development (PD)

Gity of Williston

September 1 9, 2022

Kathie Ebaugh, AICP

Director of Planning
3530 NW 43,d Street
Gainesville, FL 32606

{352) 375-8eee
www.jbpro.com

fJ ro
34



--LJEIJTO

l.

il.

ilt.

tv.

V.

vt.

..3

.12

.16

.25

.26

.27

Table of Contents

Statement of Proposed Change

Concurrency lmpact Analysis ........

Comprehensive Plan Consistency ..

Compliance with Land Development Regulations (LDRs)

Conclusions:

List of Attachments

2Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

35



l-nJltPro
l. Statement of Proposed Change

The proposed Berkley Oaks Subdivision project is a rezoning application for an approximately
47.9 +l- acre residential property located in Williston, Florida on SW 7th just west of Williston
Middle High School about 30 miles from the Cities of Gainesville and Ocala, Maps 1 and 2. This

proposed project will result in residential subdivision with 248 dwelling units-148 of which will
be single-family dwelling units and 100 will be multi-family paired housing dwelling units. The

density for the proposed project will be 5.18 dwelling units per acre.

Map L: Vicinity Map: LocalArea
US Hwy 27 I

r -Sybject :Eler:entarySchm-l i

sw 12th st

SW 7th Street

Map 2: Vicinity Map: Regional Area
29 Min 10 downl0m

FL

I

I

I

I

Williston, FL
Proposed Property

30 Mrn. lo doivn!0wn
Oeal6, FL

2S Mrn ta I,f5. tunazon
trstrtluir0i, and slultrpl8
olltet Dlrlfi but0n Centsrs

School

2S Mn to l-75
25 Mrn to UF Hesllhishands

a.)Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Applicatiorr

36



r-LJllPro
A. LAND USE DETERMINATION

A.7 Existing Land Use Entitlements

The property has a Residential Future Land Use classification and a Residential Single Family (R-

1) Zoning designation, Table l and Maps 3 and 4. The Residential land use designation entitles
the development of residential dwelling units up to 12 units per acre. The R-1 Zoning designation
allows for the development of single-family dwellings at 4 dwelling units per acre.

Table 1: Future Land Use and Zoning Designations

Location Jurisdiction Future Land Use CurrentZonins
Proposed Propefi City of Williston Residential {t-2 du/a} R-L {a du/a}

North Levy County Commercial L-^1

South Levy County Urban Low Design Residential (1du/a) R-.r {1 du/a}
East Citv of Williston Residential{12 du/a} R-l {4 du/a}
West City of Williston Industrial I

Map 3:Vicinity Map: Future Land Use

!,,

Proposed property: Orange outline

coM-
Countv

UIOR.
County

4Berkiey Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Applicatiorr

37



a2
County

:-- I
R1 RI

.iBPro
Map 4: Vincinity Map: Zoning

County

Proposed property: Red outline

ln addition to the established future land use and zoning designations, the proposed site has

development entitlements from an existing plat, Map 5. The existing plat allows for the

development of 238 single family units at a density of 4.98 units per acre.

Map 5: Existing Plat

--.{ff,1----+
*cnd r rowxsHiP I 3 sotrfi. lailGE r I aAlt

rrvYcouNn. troroA H

R,l

l:**'

ffi
Jll#:i

:!
<!6
!6E

;oi

93
L:
It:

rilli

Note: A full scale version of the existing plat is included in the attachments.

5

T
tr

=

liil
tl
il.-

i_t

.1.;,

il
+r
ll-

1i:
r't-$"os
I't'sti!'

flerkley Oaks Suirdivisiorr i Rezonirtr.1 A1:plicaiiorr

38



--L.JllPro

R-1

County

Proposed property: Red outline

A.2 Proposed Chonge in Land Use Entitlements

This proposed development differs from the existing land use entitlements in four ways:

1) diversifies the types of housing to include both single- and multi-family units, 2) increases the

density to 5.18 dwelling units per acre 3) increases the number of platted lots to 248, and

4) alters the lot sizes. While the future land use designation allows for these entitlements; the

zoning designation and existing plat do not. Thus, the property will need to be rezoned and

replatted to consistent with the Master Use Plan standards, Maps 6 andT.

Map 6: Proposed Zoning Map

Map 7: Master Use Plan

.-*
- -s-

:fr::

---u----P

r@q

*{+_
:+{-Er

El-- WDEBffiSSIEFU

Note: A full scale Master Use Plan is included in the attachments.

6Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

39



iBPro
A.3 Compatibility with Existing and Future Ldnd Uses

Diversifying the existing single-family residential plat to a development with a range of housing

types is consistent with the development pattern surrounding area's diverse land uses. As shown

on Table 2 and Map 8, the proposed development is surrounded by residential neighborhoods

(yellow), commercial areas (red), industrial properties (purple), public airport and educational

facilities (blue), places of worship (grey), and agricultural lands (green).

Table 2: Existing Adjacent Land Uses

Location Existing Use

Proposed Propertv Vacant Residential Land

North Reside ntial
South Agricultural Lands
East K-12 Educational Faci I ity
West Vacant and Active lndustrial Lands

Map 8: Vicinity Map: Existing Land Uses

r :

I
;

Proposed property: Yellow outline

These diverse land uses are connected by two major roadways: SW L2th Street (SR 121) and SW

7th Street (US 41), Map 9.

7Berkley Oaks Su[:division I Rezoning Application

40



rInJlllrro
Map 9: Vicinity Map: Roadways

Proposed property: Yellow outline

Roadways: Mustard lines

ln the future, this area is planned to become even more diverse. The city's future land use

planning standards and zoning standards, allow current uses to transition from predominantly

agricultural uses to residential, commercial, and industrial uses, Table 3 and Map 8.

Table 3: Proposed Future Land Use and Zoning

I

Lncatlon Jurisdistlon Future lsnd Use PronmedZoninp
Proposed Propefi City of Williston Residential {1"2 du/a} PD

North Levy County Commercial c-2

South Levy County Urban Low Design Residential {1du/a} R-t-

East Citv of Williston Residential{12 du/a} R-Z

West Citv of Williston Industrial I

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

41



r-;-
JEPTo

;i;ffISA.'.rl''W
Map 8: Vicinity Map: Planned Future Uses

:

,3

i;

;,
u
H

..1

I#f,' r!r.4itr '.*M
Proposed property: Yellow outline

B. Prooosed Master Use Plan Standards

Below are the development standards for the proposed development. Based on current
conditions, it is anticipated that this development will follow all other land development codes

and standards adopted by the City of Williston or other regulatory agency.

ln order to achieve the proposed development of 248 single and multi-family homes, this zoning

application requests that the current R-1 zoning be changed to PD zoning. PD zoning allows the
city to establish site-specific zoning and site planning standards through the adoption of a PD

Master Use Plan. The PD Master Use Plan proposed through this application would establish the
development standards, uses, and building standards for this project.

8.7 Proposed Uses

The PD Master Use Plan exhibits identify the layout of proposed the Berkley Oaks Subdivision PD.

The central features of the plan are 248 single- and multi- family residential units, which are

intended to be market rate housing. The following section establishes the specific land use

allowed in this plan.

1) Allowable uses in the Berkley Oaks Subdivision shall be

a. Single-Family Detached
b. Multi-FamilyAttached Paired Housing

IBerkiey Oaks Subdivrsron I Rezorring Application

42



.IBPro
2) The acreage for each of these uses is shown in Table 4 below

Table 4 e for Uses

Gross Acreage of Land: lncludes common lands-e.g.: stormwater, roadways, utility infrastructure
Net Acreage of Land: Does not include common lands.

Flexibility in the PUD standards is necessary to be able to address unforeseeable site constraints,

environmental conditions, and market demands. As such, the PUD Zoning District may allow for
upto2O% transferability of units between single-family and multi-family.

8.2 Building Stondards
The lot and building dimensions established in Table 5 shall apply

Table 5: Building Standards

8.3 Architectural Design Sto ndards

The design of the single-family homes and multi-family attached paired housing units will be

developed consistent with the following architectural design standards. These design standards

shall be adopted as part of the land development regulations that govern this PUD Zoning District.

Architectural Design Standards

1.1Two or more distinct building models shall be designed for projects with
more than four primary buildings.

L.2 A covered entry area shall be designed at the main entry to each building

Use Units Gross Acreage of Land Net Acrease of Land

Single-Fami ly Detached

Dwellins Units
748 34.52 21.53

Multi-Family Paired Housing

Dwelling Units
100 13.38 8.36

Section
Minimum Lot Standards Maximum Building

Coverage

Setbacks Maximum

HeishtSize width Depth Front Side Rear

Single-Family Detached

Dwelline Units
4m0 sq ft 40lt 100 ft 60% 20 ft 5ft 10 ft 35 ft

Multi-Family Attached
Dwelling Units

5,000 sq ft 50 ft 100 ft 60% 20 ft 0ft 10 ft 35 ft

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 10

43



--LJllt ro
1.3 Four architectural design features are required on facades facing public

streets, parking and common areas. Acceptable architectural design

features may include but is not limited to:
1) Articulation of building fagade

2l Extensions to the building through covered porches, bay or box windows,

and other similar features projecting out from the fagade

3) A horizontal change in building materials between stories of a building

4) Variation in building materials between vertical intervals

5) Variations in window placement

6) Architecturalfeatures such as shutters, awnings, balconies, verandas,

railings, dormers, chimneys, decorative moldings or ornamental details

7) Other similar design features

1.4 Architectural detailing, horizontal off-sets and other features shall be provided

on all sides of the building to avoid blank walls and large, monolithic masses.

1.5 Roof height, pitch, ridgelines and materials shall be varied to create visual

interest and avoid repetition.

8.4 Developme nt Sto ndards

Development standards may be modified in ways consistent with the general intent and purpose

for the PD District. The applicant is not requesting any modifications to the City of Williston's
development standa rds.

8.5 Emergency Access Standards

Emergency access shall be provided via the ingress/egress roadways established on the Master

Use Plan. The emergency access is located on SW 7th Street (US 41) east of the proposed

development.

C. REZONING JUSTIFICATION

The rezoning request from R-l- to PD is required for four reasons 1) the current zoning does not
allow for a mix of single and multi-family residential dwelling units,2) the desired density is

greater than is allowed in the R-1 zoning category, 2) the proposed number of units are more

than the established plat, and 4) the site standards need to be modified from the city's standards

as well as from the established plat. The Master Use Plan proposed through this application
provides standards that addresses each of these reasons and, in doing so, enables the city to
achieve its planning goals.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 11

44



r-,-JllPro
ll. Concurrency lmpact Analysis

The State of Florida growth management legislation establishes concurrency standards that
ensure local governments can adequately provide public facilities to new developments without
constraining adopted local levels of service. The City of Williston Comprehensive Plan Chapter 11

establishes a Concurrency Management System through the adoption of level of service (LOS)

standards for transportation, potable water, sanitary sewer, solid waste, drainage, and

recreation. The following section provides an analysis of how this proposed development will
impact these adopted levels of service standards.

A. TRANSPORTATION CONCURRENCY

A.7 Roadwoys:

The Concurrency Management System states the adopted LOS guidelines for motor vehicle

transportation is a level C. Tables 6 and 7 from the Metropolitan Transportation Planning

Organization for Gainesville Urbanized Area shows that the impact the proposed maximum 248

dwelling units-148 single-family dwelling units and 100 multi-family dwelling units-will have

on motor vehicle transportation. This trip generation meets the adopted LOS for roadways.

Table 6: Roadway Concurrency Assessment -Single-Family Dwelling Units

Source:
1) Metropolitan Planning Organization for Gainesville Urbanized Area
2l ITE Trip Generation, Manual 10th Edition

loadway Segment Level of Service

7th Street (US 4l-lSR 45 / SR 271from

CR 323 (CR 326)to CR 316 (NE 39th Street)
c

Daily Trip Generation2 Number of Units

(148 lots x L du= 148

Total Development

Daily Trips Per Unit r48 1491Trips Per Day

AM Peak Hour 1,48 1L5 Trips Per Day

PM Peak Hour 1,48 154 Trips Per Day

Betl<ley Oaks Slbdivrsion I Rezorring Applicatiorr 12

45



r-,nJllttro
Table 7: Roadway Concurrency Assessment - Multi-Family Dwelling Units

Roadway Segment Level of Service

7th Street (US 41lSR 45 / SR 27) from
CR 323 (CR 325) to CR 316 (NE 39th Street)

c

)aily Trip Generationz Number of Dwelling Units

(50lotsx2du=100)
lotal Development

Daily Trips Per Unit 100 715 Trips Per Day

AM Peak Hour 100 57 Trips Per Day

PM Peak Hour 100 67 Trips Per Day

Source:

3)

4l
Metropolitan Planning Organization for Gainesville Urbanized Area
ITE Trip Generation, Manual 10th Edition

A.2 Airport:
The proposed development is located within the glidepath of the Williston Municipal Airport,

Runway 23 as shown on Map L0. The applicant has submitted an application for a FAA 7460

review to identify and address any concerns the FAA may have with the project. The application
is attached to this submittal.

Map 10: Williston Municpal Airport Glidepath Proximity

i:ir:ikl cy tli ii ks 5u b tj i vi s i ot t i Rt:zi;r I i t ir,i ;\itfr i i ca I i r:rn !:l

46



---.JllPro
B. POTABLE WATER CONCURRENCY

The Concurrency Management System states the adopted LOS guidelines for potable water is

175 gallons per day. Table 8 shows that the impact the proposed maximum 248 dwelling units

will have on potable water. The maximum total peak gallons per day for the entire residential

development of potable water will be 43,4OO gallons. This usage meets the adopted LOS for
portable water.

Table 8: Potable Water Concurrency Assessment

C. SANITARY SEWER CONCURRENCY

The Concurrency Management System states the adopted LOS guidelines for sanitary sewer is

147 gallons per day. Table 9 shows that the impact the proposed maximum 248 dwelling units

will have on sanitary sewerage. The maximum total peak gallons per day for the entire residential

development of sanitary sewage will be 36,456 gallons. This usage meets the adopted LOS for
sanitary sewer.

Table 9: Sanitary Sewer Concurrency Assessment

Sanitary Sewer Analysis Density Gallons Per Day

Residential dwelling units 248 units 36,456

Based ofl d LOS of 747 gallons per day lor Residential Units.

D. SOLID WASTE CONCURRENCY

The Concurrency Management System states the adopted LOS guidelines for solid waste is 3.95

pounds of solid waste per capita per day. Table 10 shows that the impact the proposed maximum

248 dwelling units will have on solid waste. The maximum total inbound tons per person per

year for the entire residential development of sanitary sewage will be 179 tons. This usage meets

the adopted LOS for solid waste.

Potable Water Analysis Density Gallons Per Day

Residential dwelling units 248 units 43,400

Bosed off a LOS of 775 peak gollons per capital per day.

[3erkley Oaks Sul':cJivisiorr I Rezoninq Applrcartiorr 14

47



r--,
JEPTo
Table 10: Solid Waste Concurrency Assessment

E. DRAINAGE CONCURRENCY

The Concurrency Management System states the adopted LOS for Drainage is the 25-year,24-
hour storm event. The lnfrastructure Element, Drainage section states that in order to
accommodate the LOS, the City shall establish the following practices through its planning and
Iand development practices: 1) new development shall retain on-site all stormwater runoff in
amount greater than those levels existing before development, excluding single-family
dwellings, 2) no future septic tanks or individualwells will be allowed within five hundred (500)
feet of any city well, 3) no future water retention areas will be allowed within five hundred
(500)feet of any City well, and 4)the city shall ensure that following development of any tract
of land, recharge amounts shall equalthose occurring prior to development. This standard will
be met in the site development phase of this project.

F. RECREATION CONCURRENCY

The Concurrency Management System states the adopted LOS guidelines for recreation is ten
(10) acres per one thousand (1,000) persons. The Parks Element section states that in order to
accommodate the LOS, the City shall implement the recreation standards through the subdivision

regulations. This standard will be met in the site development phase of this project.

G. OPEN SPACE CONCURRENCY

The Concurrency Management System states the adopted LOS guidelines for open space is ten
(10) acres of open space per one thousand (1,000) persons. The Parks Element section states that
in order to accommodate the LOS, the City shall implement the open space standards through
the land development regulations. This standard has been considered in the development of the
Master Use Plan and will be met in the site development phase of this project.

Solid Waste Analysis Density Tons Per Year
Residential dwelling units 248 units L79

Based off a LOS of 3.95 tons per year per unit for residential

Berl<ley Oaks Subdivisiorr I Rezonirrg Application 15

48



--LJllPro
lll. Comprehensive Plan Consistency

The City of Williston Comprehensive Plan, "provide(s) o guide for the future timing, location and

intensity of various types of development, and to provide o framework upon which local
government decisions can be bosed." The following assessment demonstrates how development
proposed through this rezoning application achieves the goals, objectives, and policies of the
city's comprehensive plan. This assessment evaluates the extent to which the rezoning of the
property from the existing R-1 zoning designation to proposed PD supports the city's desire to,
"ensure thot the charocter ond locotion of land uses maximize the potentialfor economic benefit
and the enjoyment of naturol ond mon-mode resources by citizens, while minimizing the threot
to heolth, safety and welfare posed by hazords, nuisances, incompatible lond uses ond

e nvi ro n m e nta I d eg ra d ati o n."

A. FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT

Obiective 7: By 2O2O, future growth and development will be directed by adopted land

development regulations into_appropriate land use areas with the availability of facilities and

services, suitable topography and soil_conditions.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development of this proposed rezoning

application is consistent with the city's goal of providing residential dwelling units on

the proposed development site.

Policv 1.2: All new development shall be required, through the zoning ordinance and subdivision

regulations, to provide:

a. Drainage and stormwater management.

b. Open space, through both lot coverage requirements and usable open space requirements.

c. Safe and convenient on-site traffic flow and off-street parking.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan for this new
development provides the community with adequate drainage and stormwater
management, open space, and safe traffic flow.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 16

49



r-nJEl'70
Policv 1.5: The City of Williston shall encourage to the extent possible the location of schools

based on the following criteria:

a. Proximity to residential areas, particularly for elementary schools.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: As intended by this policy, this proposed

development is located within proximity to K-12 educational programs as the city's
middle-high school is located next to the site and elementary school is within one mile.

Obiective 8: Encourage the use of innovative land development regulations which may include
provisions for planned unit developments and other mixed land use development techniques.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The use of the PD zoning category executes this
planning objective by allowing the applicant to establish land development standards

that address the unique planning demands presented by this pre-platted subdivision.

Policv 8.L The City will promote Planned Unit Development projects such as clustered single-

family, townhouse, villa and multi-family residential, commercial, professional and industrialto
allow for less costly and more efficient provision of public support services, green belts and open

space and to foster aesthetically pleasing urban/suburban development.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this

PD zoning application incorporates a variety of different types of dwelling units as it
includes 148 single-family and 100 multi-family paired housing.

B. TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT

Obiective 7.2: By consistent implementation of Land Development Regulations as part of the
growth management process, the City of Williston will achieve safe and convenient access to and

mobility between majortrip producers and attractors, future land uses, and specialgenerators,

which could also support future increase in transit services provided within the community.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application features an integrated roadway network that links the proposed

neighborhood development to the surrounding community resources.

Policv 1-.2.a: The City will control the connections and access points of driveways and roads to
roadways through its Zoning Regulations and Subdivision Regulations.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this

PD zoning application meets the roadway development standards adopted by the city's
land development regulations.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 17

50



r-LJllt ro
Policv 7.2.b: All future subdivisions will be required to install roads that meet the minimum

applicable standard specifications in the City of Williston Code of Subdivision Regulations.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this

PD zoning application meets the roadway development standards adopted by the citt's
land development regulations.

Policv 2.7.o: All planned developments, regardless of size or location, shall provide a section line

right-of-way dedication for future road construction. This requirement may be modified or

waived in circumstances where pre-existing development or geologic features such as sinkholes

and quarries would create a non-functional road. On the existing transportation network, any

and all planned development shall be set back from the road centerline according to subdivision

regulations.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application meets the roadway development standards adopted by the city's

land development regulations.

Policv 2.7.b: The City shall enforce the Williston Zoning Ordinance to ensure that all new

construction complies to setback regulations.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this

PD zoning application meets the roadway development standards adopted by the city's

land development regulations.

Policv 2.1.e: All new private roads shall be constructed to the same standards as City streets.
Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary develo$ment plan proposed by this

PD zoning application meets the roadway development standards adopted by the city's

land development regulations.

Policv 2.2.c:Ih rough consistent application of the Land Development Regulations and as directed

by the Future Land Use Element, the City will seek to approve residential development at planned

densities as measured by block, zoning district and neighborhood levels.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this

PD zoning application is consistent with the city's planned density and development

standards adopted by the city's land development regulations and Future Land Use

Element.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 10

51



l-L,Jlllrro
Policv 2.7.d:The C ity of Williston shall support and strengthen the role of the Williston municipal

Airport by requiring that adjacent development be compatible with airport related activities.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application is compatible with activities located within airport zones.

Policv 2.7.e: New development shall not obstruct aircraft operations by intersecting the airport's
clear zones, approach zones, transition zones, horizontal surface, and conical surfaces.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application is consistent with the development standards established by the
FAA for areas the lie within airport zones.

Policv 2.7.f: All building regulations - floor are ratios (FAR) and height shall be promoted to
guarantee the continued efficient operation of the airport and ensure public safety.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The height standards proposed by this PD zoning

application are consistent with the development standards established by the FAA for
areas the lie within airport zones.

C. INFRASTRUCTURE ELEMENT

Obiective 7: Provide a drainage system adequate to accommodate adopted Level of Service

standards. For the existing drainage system, stormwater quality needs to meet ambient
(surrounding)water quality conditions to protect aquifer quality. For new facilities, stormwater
quality should meet controlling federal, state and water management district standards.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development standards proposed by this PD

application ensures the city's LOS standards for drainage are met.

Policv 2.7: New developments shall retain on-site all stormwater runoff in amounts greater than

those levels existing before development, excluding single-family dwellings.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application meets the infrastructure drainage development standards

adopted by the city's land development regulations.

Policv 2.5: As a means of providing for the maximum recharge of the Floridan aquifer and

preventing losses of human lives and property, it shall be city policy to require onsite stormwater
retention in all new developments. To implement this policy, subdivision regulations will be

adopted as necessary, with due consideration for natural runoff conditions, intensity of

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 19

52



r-LJlllrro
development, soils types, topography and such other factors as may be necessary to the
development of reasonable and equitable regulations.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this

PD zoning application meets the infrastructure drainage development standards

adopted by the city's land development regulations.

Policv 2.6: The City of Williston shall accomplish protection of aquifer recharge by:

a. Requiring any recharge to the aquifer will be of the same or higher quality as could occur under

natural conditions.

b. Following development of any tract of land, recharge amounts shall equal those occurring prior

to development.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this

PD zoning application meets the infrastructure drainage development standards

adopted by the city's land development regulations.

Obiective 5: The City shall continue to operate and maintain a wastewater treatment system that
meets or exceeds all controlling standards, including adopted Level of Service.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development standards proposed by this PD

application ensures the city's LOS standards for sanitary sewer are met.

Obiective 8: The City shall continue to operate and maintain a potable water system that meets
or exceeds all controlling standards, including adopted Level of Service.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development standards proposed by this PD

application ensures the city's LOS standards for sanitary sewer are met.

Obiective 12: Adopt Land Development Regulations that protect the functions of natural

groundwater recharge areas and natural drainage features.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development standards proposed by this PD

application ensures the city's LOS standards for potable water are met.

Policv 12.7: New development shall retain on-site all stormwater run-off in amounts greater than

those levels existing before development.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application meets the infrastructure development standards adopted by the
city's land development regulations.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezonirrg Application 2A

53



iBPro
Policv 12.2: Zoning and subdivision regulationswill regulate lot coverand structure density, plus

other improvements needed to maintain aquifer recharge.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application meets the infrastructure development standards adopted by the
city's land development regulations.

Obiective L2.o: All new subdivisions proposed, all zoning changes requested, and all permits or
development orders issued shall, through the adopted Land Development Regulations,

document that the activity is coordinated and consistent with either the existing or the proposed

water system. ln addition, adopted administrative procedures for the Comprehensive Plan will
require water extensions, increased capacity and proposed new facilities to be coordinated with
both the Utilities Element and the Land Use Element.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application will is consistent and coordinated with the city's planning and
development standards adopted by the city's land development regulations, Utilities
Element, and Future Land Use Element.

Policv 74.2: The minimum Level of Service standard for solid waste collection and disposal by

Williston is one hundred percent (LOO%) of all solid waste and 3.95 pounds per capita per day,

and with disposal at the New River Regional Landfill with a design capacity of 800 tons, or 1.5

million pounds, of solid waste per day (of 312 operating days).

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application meets the infrastructure development standards adopted by the
city's land development regulations.

Policv 77.3: The City of Williston will prohibit development from impacting natural aquifer or
groundwater characteristics, including characteristics of wetlands and floodplains, based on the
best available data.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application meets the infrastructure development standards adopted by the
city's land development regulations.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 21

54



.iBPro
D. CONSERVATION ELEMENT

Obiective 7: Allow development in Williston only after a thorough review of potential

environmental problems has been made. This analysis shall include physical properties of soils

and underlying rocks, soil thickness, depth to groundwater, groundwater flow characteristics,

surface water presence and danger of flooding.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development of this property will meet all
development standards adopted by the city's land development regulations to protect

the area soil and ground stability.

Policv 1.7: Control drainage and runoff through adopted subdivision regulations and/or the
zoning ordinances to ensure that the surface and groundwater supplies in the area are protected

from pollutants.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development of this property will meet all
development standards adopted by the city's land development regulations to ensure

that surface and groundwater supplies in the area are protected from pollutants.

Policv 7.7: Developers, before they receive a development permit, shall prove to the City Council

that their project would not cause undue water quality or quantity problems in the city, This may

include, but not be limited to, obtaining all permits required by: Florida DEP and the Southwest
Florida Water Management District. This requirement will be incorporated into the adopted Land

Development Regulations.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development of this property will meet all

development standards adopted by the city's land development regulations to ensure

that the proposed development will not cause undue water quality or quantity
problems.

Policv 7.2: Support actions which would preserve native trees and conserve any vegetation which
is aesthetically pleasing.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: This PD rezoning application includes a site analysis
map that identifies areas suitable for tree cover.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application LL

55



--nJEI'rO
E. RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE ELEMENT

Policy 3.a: Policy 4 Open space, which is defined as undeveloped lands suitable for passive

recreation or conservation uses, is not a problem at this time since large amounts of private land

remain undeveloped. However, mechanisms shall be made available to maintain usable open

space in the future. An open space standard of ten (L0) acres per 1,000 population is the locally

adopted policy. Mandatory dedication of open space shall be required in new subdivisions

through the subdivision and/or Land Development Regulations, and shall include the above open

space definitions and standards for all new developments and redevelopments.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development standards proposed by this PD

application ensures the city's LOS standards for recreation are met.

F. CONCURRENCY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM ELEMENT

LOS Standards: Throughout the various chapters of this Comprehensive Plan, various LOS have

been adopted. ln summary form, the LOS applicable in the City of Williston and against which

actions of the elected officials and proposed developments will be measured include: roads,

sanitary sewer, solid waste, drainage, potable water, recreation, mass transit.
Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development standards proposed by this PD

application ensures the city's adopted LOS standards are met.

Policv 11.7: Facilities and services necessary to meet the LOS standards adopted by the City of
Williston shall be in place at the time a building permit is issued; or,

a. The necessary facilities are under construction at the time a permit is issued; or,

b. The necessary facilities and services are the subject of a binding executed contract for the
construction of the facilities or the provision of services at the time the development permit is

issued; or,

c, The necessary facilities and services are guaranteed in an enforceable development

agreement. An enforceable agreement may include, but is not limited to, development
agreements pursuant to Section L63.3220, Florida Statutes or an agreement or development
order issued pursuant to Chapter 380, Florida Statutes; or,

d. The necessary facilities and services are provided for pursuant to Policy 11.2, which such

alternative is available at the exclusive option of the elected officials.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: As part of the construction of this proposed

development, the applicant will ensure that required facilities and services necessary

to meet the IOS standards are in place at the time of building permit.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 23

56



J
Policv 71.3: Adequate water supplies to serve new development will be available no later than
the anticipated date of issuance of a certificate of occupancy.

a. The city shall ensure sanitary sewer, solid waste, drainage, adequate water supplies, and

potable water facilities shall be in place and available to serve new development no later no later

than the issuance by the local government of a certificate of occupancy or its functional
equ ivalent.

b. Prior to approval of a building permit or its functional equivalent, the local government shall

consult with the applicable water supplier to determine whether adequate water supplies to
serve the new development will be available no later than the anticipated date of issuance by

the local government of a certificate of occupancy or its functional equivalent.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: As part of the construction of this proposed

development, the applicant will ensure that adequate water supplies necessary to meet
serve the new development are in place at the time of certificate of occupancy.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Applicatiorr .A

57



--nJllt ro
lV. Compliance with Land Development Regulations (LDRs):

All applicable land development regulations that govern the development of land with the PD

zoning designation will be adhered to through the site planning and development process.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 25

58



r-nJlllrro
V. Conclusions:
This zoning application request is consistent with and serves to implement the City of Williston
Comprehensive Plan goals, objectives and policies. The request meets the review criteria and

standards for PD rezoning applications found in the City of Williston Land Development Code,

including consistency, compatibility, similarity of development patterns in the area of the subject
property, suitability, adequacy of public services, access, and promotion of the public health,

safety, and welfare. The applicant requests approval of the application based upon the
demonstrated consistency and implementation of the applicable plan goals, objectives, and

policies as well as the conformance to all applicable provisions of the land development code.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 26

59



J
Vl. List of Attachments
Attachment A: Cover Letter

AttachmentB: Application

Attachment C: Property Owner Affidavit

Attachment D: Taxes and Deed

Attachment E: legal Description and Boundary Survey

Attachment F: FAA 7450 Review Application Receipt

Attachment G: Master Use Plan Exhibits

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 2l
60



rII

JEPTo

Attachment A:

Application Cover Letter

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

61



.iBPro

Ar.rgust 17,lSlI

ME. [aura JoneE
Cornrnunlty Dewlopment & Grants Manager
City nf Willirts*
50 hlW Main.Street
Witliston, FL 326fr6

fte: Berkfey Oaks ftrbdivision- Rezoning Subrnittal

Dear {-aura"

Attached is the reroning applicatian fsr the Berkley Saks Subdivision, This application requests
the current Residentia$-l {R-U zoning classification be changed to Flanfled Developrnent (pDl"

Ms. l(athie Ebaugft, AICF, Flanning Director of JBFrs, will be actinE as the agent for this project
We request tfiat the city wprks with Ms- Ehaugh as th,e prirnary contart and representatiw fsr
this projert.

The rnaterial submltted in support sf thE application is listed bel,fft-

'i- Ioning Applicntion
2" Rezoning Flarrative
3" Master tjse Plan Exhibits
4- Fraperty 0rsner Affid.avir
5- Legal Descripti*n of Prcject Area
S- Proof <lf Taxesand Deed
7" Application Fee - Check in the ilrnounr of 57IS.0O

Flease feel free to contact rrue if you have ony qu€stiens. comrnents, or need any additional
information.

Sincerely,
f-C+r14hi${ rr'

| "*d,r- 1,r**
)trl.frr{utitUn{s, lr.
Fresident of Eovingtan-FFC.

l3erkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezonlnc Appiication

62



---Jlllrro

Attachment B:

Application

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

63



CITY OF WILLISTON
APPLICATION FOR
ZONING CHANGE

(Completed application will need to be received by the first of the month prinr to the Planning
and zoning commissionmeeting, which rneets the last Tuesday of the month)

Applicant's Name: Covington-FPc,LLC : John M. Curtis. Jr.

Applicant's Mailing Address 132s2 SW 6th Ave.

Telephone Number ?9,J.R1-1R62

Address where change requested: SW 7th Stre ust west of Williston Middle High School

Legal Owner of parcel: Covington-FPC, LLC

Tax parcel lD# Multinle. See descrintion

Legal Description of parcel: (attach exhibit if necessary)

See separate page.

Current Land Use/Zoning Map designation: Residential-1 (R-l)

Requested Land Use/Zoning Map Designation' Pianned Development (PD)

Please provide the following:
1. A leffer addressed to City Planner, requesting a zoning change.2. Proof of identification: Copy o[ iax 'cleed.

3. Survey of land.

REZONING FEES (Make checks payable to the City of Williston, PO Drawer 160, Williston,
FL 32696)z

a. Rezoning without land use map amendment $ 720.00
b. Rezoning and small scale land use map amendment $ 720.00
c. Rezoning and large scale land use map amendment $2,500.00

Application will be considered incomplete unless all the above is completed and provided.

Aug.16,2022

John M. ,Jr
Pres. of
limited liability company
PZ|Oj5

LLC. a Florida

Date

64



-J

Attachment C:

Property Owner Affidavit

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

65



" tEr{z }t GEtl}l
tloiary Public, Slate of Florida

Commi$bn$ HH 172517

My omm. expirc Sept 6, 2025
"ttA*-

PROPERTY OWNERS' AFFIDAVIT

Covi LLC Berkelev Oaks Subdivision

Owner

N/A

Application No.

Additional Owners

John Curtis. President

Appointed Agent(s)

Multiple: See Boundary Survey

ParcelNumbe(s)

Rezon from Residential- 1 (R-1) to Planned Development (PD)

Type of Request

I (we), the property owne(s) of the subject property, being duly sworn, depose and say the following:

1. That I am (we are) the owne(s) and record title holde(s) of the property described in the attached legal description;

2. That this property constitutes the property for which the above noted land use request is being made to the Alachua County

Board of County Commissioners;

3. That I (we), the undersigned, have appointed, and do appoint, the above noted person(s) as my (our) agent(s) to execute any

agreemeni(s;, and othei documents necessary to effeciuate such agreement(s) in the process of pursuing lhe aforementioned

land use request;

4. That this affidavit has been executed to induce the Alachua County Board of County Commissioners to consider and act on

the subject request;

5. That I the undersigned authority, hereby certify that the foregoing statements are true and correct'

(si

STATE OF FLORIDA SWORN AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME

fii.*t \1r,ur;l- THIS Kiih DAY OF 20:},t-
BY

WHO IS/ARE PERSONALLY KNOWN TO ME OR HAS/HAVE PRODUCED AS IDENTIFICA TION

oF IDENT|FICATION)

Notary Public, Commission r,ro. +{ f-l 1i}5 i 1-
(Name ol Notary typed, printed, or stamped)

66



--nJEPTo

Attachment D:

Tax Record and Deed

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

67



mmf,8ti8 XICf,Eti: tAtilcfilD
REI'L ESTATE

sextool sc$frt - BT&!E
sclm@ - ioc1:
sct{ot}L-B}5lc Drgc

.8A1En Sff!!,l,O
ct?I cIrY 0f 1ltrilrs?oll
EXE$gl:OS:NolrE

P*OIERTY:

ElrE$PtUS: . mr'E

3.6:T0
1 - 8000

.7 aao
-393S

€- ?gcs

2 -19
4"?9

xo-0$
6..O0

10-o0

0?-13-r.9 ROEiNSOtt. C ";|DDITICFa
ELOCK 6 rot 1.S 01 EOOK t359 pASS

l8rfY cttrnwY

lrtutE: 2S0

3S"25
4, AEC
{,230
{, esc
{. ?50
{, l5o

0
0

0

{.2S0
{,:50
4.250
4. ?50
4,158

ls..4t

3, 18
r-0€

2€,69

TIXES r

?AXNBI,E
4.2Se lNT.
4i250 SAi.E 5t

AE{r. FEE
1}IT- AIN'
I$r-seLE

:031

07-13-19 C0grl{sOu's }DDrTrqit
sIACtr G Lgt 13 0e BooI{ 1339 pA€E
124
IcER?II:TCaTE HAS BESU 1S5E9D*.
os / 3L/ 22 CEnT lio :20e2-00001??€-0G
99S-2021-G00e269 - 0001

0€319-00e-15
cQrif,IllcToll FFc Lrc
10s0 N{ r1zrr{ TEn
GAINESVILI..E, T'L 32606

68



rNsrR # 602673, oR BK 1359 Page L24, Recorded 06/29/2015 at o4:2L pM,
Rec:$44.O0 Deed Doc:$731.50 Danny J. Shipp, LEVY COUNTY CLERK Deputy C1-erk
MB

a
4'l'o6
1tt,d

Preoared bv and return to:
Lizete Raiford

Community Title, LLC
175 NW l38th Ter., Ste. 100
Newberry, FL 32669
352-33r-0817
File Number: CT-I5-l t65

[Space Above This l.ine For Recording

Special Warranty Deed
This Special Warranty Deed made this 25th day of June, 20t5 between US Hwy 4l & NE 30 Street, LLC,
a dissolved Florida Limited Liability Company whose post office address is 6100 Hollywood Blvd #305,
Hollywood, FL 33024, grantor, and Covington-FPC, LLC whose post office address is 1000 NW lt2th Ter,
Gainesvllle, FL 32606, grantee:

(Whenever used herein the terms grantor and grantee include all the parties to this instrument and the heirs, legal representatives, and assigns of individuals,
and the successors and assigns ofcorporations, trusts and trustees)

Witnesseth, that said grantor, for and in consideration of the sum TEN AND NO/I00 DOLLARS ($10.00) and other good
and valuable considerations to said grantor in hand paid by said grantee, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, has
granted, bargained, and sold to the said grantee, and grantee's heirs and assigns forever, the following described land, situate,
lying and being in Levy County, Florida, to-wit:

See Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof as if fully set forth herein.

Subject to taxes for 2015 and subsequent years; covenants, conditions, restrlctions, easements,
reservations and limitations of record, if any.

Parcel ldentification Number: 06319-00t-000,0631900U16,063t900V30,0631900U09, 0631900V31,0631900U08,
0631900v07, 0631 900ut 5, 0631900u1 4, 0631 900u t3, 0631900u n, 0631 900u17, 0631900v05, 063t 900v06, 063t 9-
00U00, 0631900U t2 and 0631 900V04

Together with all the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereto belonging or in anywise appertaining,

To Have and to Hold, the same in fee simple forever.

And the grantor hereby covenants with said grantee that the grantor is lawfully seized of said land in fee simple; that the
grantor has good right and lawful authority to sell and convey said land; that the grantor hereby fully warrants the title to said
land and will defend the same against the lawful claims of all persons claiming by, through or under grantors.

r

DoublcTlmeo

69



OR BK 1359 PG L25

In Wllnc$ whcrcof, innrqr hu hcrcunto 3.t grrntor'3 hrrld rnd sar rhc dry and yclr liBl rbovc wrincn.

Signcd, srlcd lnd d€livcEd in our proictre:

US 4l & NE lO Str$t LLC, r disolvod Florlda

Minlging

By:

(

it's

Juno,2015 by
LLC, t

Pctcr Oreir, Vicc
disolvod Floridr Linited Lirbllity

PrBldont of city

lieE as idcnrifl$rdoD.

Witncti

[Notlry S6ll

Slrtc ofFlorlda ,4
iffi,"J;;HS* ,/j.4tut 4/L/ (

fr?'s

cr.Anutr Ftr{tAY
Xot rt publtc . gtd. ot flortdt

Comnlrrhi, F teo$E
My Conrn. trtlnr Ju rt.

SFctal we@ty D..C - P.&2

Printcd N6m€:

My Commislioo Expirci: l- )t, .tc/"1

DoubLllo.'

70



oR BK 1359 PG 1"26

Exhibit A

A portion of ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON ss per plat thereof recorded ln Plat Book 3, Page 8, of the
Public Records of Levy County, Florida, said parcel includes that portion of Lots 2 through t7 of Block D lying west
of the East line of lands described as PARCEL NO. I and PARCEL NO.2 ln O.R. Book 849, Page Jl7, Lots I through
32 of Block E, Lot I and Lots l4 through 32 of Block F, Lots l4 through 2l of Block C, Lots I through 32 of Block H,
Lots 2 through 32 of Block I, Lots I through 32 of Block J, that portion of Lots 2 through l7 of Block K lying West of
the East line of lands described as PARCEL NO. I and PARCEL NO.2 in O.R. Book 849, Page 317, that portion of
Lots 2 through l8 of Block S, lying West of the East line of lands described as PARCEL NO. I and PARCEL NO. 2 in
O.R. Book 849, Page 317, Lots I through 34 of Block T, Lots I through 34 of Block U, Lots t through J4 of Block V,
that part of N.E. lst Street lying South of Lot l3 Block F and Lot 22 Block G, N.E. 2nd Street, N.E. 3rd Street, that
part of N.E. 4th Avenue lying within the boundary of those lands described as PARCEL NO. I and PARCEL NO. 2 in
O.R. Book 849, Page 317, that part of N.E. sth and 6th Avenue lying West of the East line of lands described as
PARCEL NO. I and PARCEL NO. 2 in O.R. Book 849, Page 317. SUBJECT TO the road dedication as stated on the
plat of oforesaid ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON and LESS the right-of-way for U.S. Highway No. 4l
and Levy County Road No. C-316, the same being more particularly described by the following:

PARCEL NO. I

THAT PORTION OF ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 3, PACE 8,
OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE I9 EAST,
SAID NORTHWEST CORNER BEING A FOUND NAIL AND CAP AT THE CENTERLINE INTERSECTION OF
COUNTY ROAD 316 AND U.S. HIGHWAY 4l; THENCE DEPART SAID CENTERLINE OF SAID SECTION 7, S
87030'29" E, 50.00 FEET ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 7, ALSO BEtNc THE
CENTERLINE OF COUNTY ROAD 316, TO AN INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF
SAID U.S. HIGHWAY 4t; THENCE S. 00013'45" W., 40.00 FEET TO A POINT AT THE RIGHT-OF-WAY
INTERSECTION OF COUNTY ROAD 316 AND U.S. HIGHWAY NO. 4I, SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF
BEGINNING FOR THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCELT

FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING THENCE S. OOOI3'45I'W.,933.50 FEET ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF.
WAY OF SAID U.S. HIGHWAY 4l TO A SET REBAR & CAP (2572\; THENCE DEPARTINC SAID RIGHT-OF-
WAY S. 87030'29" E.' 934.00 FEET TO A SET REBAR & CAP (2572')t THENCE N. 00013'45" E. 933.50 FEET, TO
A SET REBAR & CAP (2572) ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF COUNTY ROAD Jl6; THENCE N.
87030'29" W.,934.00 FEET TO THE pOtNT OF BEGINN|Nc.

PARCEL NO.2

THAT PORTION OF ROBINSON'S ADDITTON TO WILLISTON AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 8,
OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP t3 SOUTH, RANGE t9 EAST,
SAID NORTHWEST CORNER BEING A FOUND NAIL AND CAP AT THE CENTERLINE INTERSECTION OF
COUNTY ROAD 316 AND U.S. HIGHWAY 4l; THENCE D0PART SAID CENTERLINE INTERSECTION S.
87030129" 8., 50.00 FEET ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 7, ALSO BETNG THE
CENTERLINE OF COUNTY ROAD 3T6, TO AN INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY RIGHT.OF.WAY
SAID U.S. HIGHWAV 4l; THENCE S. 00013'45" \ry., 40.00 FEET TO A POINT AT THE RICHT-OF-WAY
INTERSECTION OF COUNTY ROAD 316 AND U.S. HIGHWAY NO.4l; THENCE CONTINUE S. 00013'44" W.,
933.50 FEET ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SAID U.S. HIGHWAY 4I TO THE POINT OF
BECINNING; THENCE DEPART FROM SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY S. E7o30'29" E.,934.00 FEET; THENCE S.
00o13'45't W., t649.54 FEET TO A POTNT ON THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF THE NORTHWEST t/4 OF
SECTION 7' TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST; THENCE N. 88031'58" W,,933.49 FEET ALONG SAID

File Nunrber: C1'-15-t t65 DoubleTlm6o

71



OR BK 1359 PG L27

Exhibit A
(Continued)

BOUNDARY LINE TO A POINT ON THE EAST RTGHT-OF-WAY OF SAID U.s. HIGHWAY NO. 4l; THENCE
N. 00ot3,45,' E., t666.45 FEET TO THE pOtNT OF BEGtNNtNc.

LESS AND EXCEPT:

PARCEL C:

A PARCEL OF LAND IN LOTS I AND 2, BLOCK ''E'', N,E,2ND STREET, AND IN LOTS I AND 2, BLOCK ''F'',
N.E. IST STREET, AND lN LOTS I THROUCH lt, BLOCK "G", OF ROBINSON,S ADDITION TO WILLISTON,
AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 8, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND
BETNG IN SECTION 7, TOWNSHTP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST, LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST,
LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDAI BEING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE CENTERLINE OF STATE ROAD NO.
45 AND COUNTY ROAD NO. 316; THENCE SOUTH 87030'20" EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID
SECTTON 7' A DISTANCE OF 15.252 METERS (50.04 FEET); THENCE SOUTH 00ol2t42tt WEST, A DISTANCE
OF T2.202 METERS (40.03 FEET) TO THE INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF
SAID COUNTY ROAD NO. 316 (A 24.384 METER (80.00 FOOT) RtcHT OF WAy), AND THE EASTERLY
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID STATE ROAD NO.45 (A 30.480 METER (100.00 FOOT) RtcHT OF WAy),
AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTTNUE SOUTH OOOI2,42" WEST ALONG SAID EASTERLY
RIGHT OF WAY LINE' A DISTANCE OF 140.505 METERS (460,97 FEET); THENCE SOUTH 89047't8" EAST, A
DISTANCE OF 3.000 METERS (9.94 FEET); THENCE NORTH O0ol2'42" EAST, A DISTANCE OF t27.383
METERS (417.92 FEET); THENCE NORTH 46o21'lt" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 7.617 METERS (24.99 FEET);
THENCE SOUTH 87030'20" EAST' A DISTANCE AF 223.292 METERS (732.58 FEET); THENCE NORTH
02029'40" EAST, A DlsrANcE oF 7.500 METERS (24.6t FEET) To A potNT oN THE sAtD sourHERLy
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD NO. 316; THENCE NORTH 87030'20" WEST ALONG SAID
SoUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE, A DTSTANCE OF 232.090 METERS (761.45 FEET) TO THE pOrNT OF
BEGINNING.

AND, LESS AND EXCEPT:

PARCEL D:

A PARCEL OF LAND BEING A PORTTON OF ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WtLL|STON, FLORIDA, AS pER
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 3, PACE 8 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY,
FLORIDA, LOCATED IN NORTHWEST QUARTER OF NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTTON 7, TOWNSHtp
I3 SOUTH, RANGE I9 EAST, LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST,
LEVY COUNTY' FLORIDA; THENCE SOUTH 87 DEGREES,3T'43" EAST, ALONC THE NORTH LINE OF
SAID SECTION 7' A DISTANCE OF 80.49 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 02 DEGREES,22'17" WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 64.6I FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF.WAY LINE OF LEVY COUNTY ROAD NO. C-3I6 AS
DESCRTBED lN O.R. BOOK 637, PAGE 765 AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 87 DEGREES,
37'43'' WEST, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 4IT.I2 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF LOT
2, BLOCK F OF ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED
IN PLAT BOOK 3' PAGE 8 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE SOUTH 00
DEGREES, 03'53'' WEST, A DISTANCE OF 560.54 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 13, BLOCK
F OF SAID ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, FLORIDA; THENCE NORTH 87 DEGREES, 36'57"
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 439.27 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 13, BLOCK G OF SAID
ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, FLORIDA; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES,05'29" EAST, ALONG
THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD NO.45 (U.S. HIGHWAY NO.4l), A DTSTANCE OF t24.09

lrile Number: C'l'-t5-l165 OoublcTlmao

72



OR BK 1359 PG L2A

Bxhibit A
(Continued)

FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES, 54'31" EAST, ALONG THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SAID STATE ROAD
NO. 45 AS DESCRIBED lN O.R. BOOK 637, PAGE 765, A DISTANCE OF 9.84 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00
DEGREES, 05'29't EAST, ALONG SAID RICHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 417.92 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 46 DEGREES, t3'58" EAST, ALONC SAID RTCHT-OF-WAY L!NE, A DISTANCE OF 24.99 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

AND, LESS AND EXCEPT:

Lots 20 and 21, Block I, ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, according to the map or plat thereof, as
recorded in Plat Book 3, Page(s) 8, of the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

Lots 22 and 23, Block F, of ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, according to the map or plat thereof, as
recorded in Plat Book 3, Page(s) 8, of the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

Lots 30 and 31, Block T, ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, according to the map or plat thereof, as
recorded in Plat Book 3, Page(s) 8, of the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

Lots 12 and t3, Block T, ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, according to the map or plat thereof, as
recorded ln Plat Book 3, Page(s) 8, of the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

Lots 30 and 31, Block J, ROBINSON'S ADDTTION TO WILLISTON, according to the map or plat thereof, as
recorded in Plat Book 3, Page(s) 8, of the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

AND, LESS AND EXCEPT:

Lots8,9,10,ll,12,13,14,15,t6,17,20,21,22,23,24,25,26,27,28and29of81ockU,andLotst,2,5,4,S,6,7,30,
31, 32 and 34 of Block V of ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, according to the Plat thereof as recorded in
Plat Book 3, Page (s) 8, of the Public Records of LEVY, County, Florida.

AND, LESS AND EXCEPT:

Lot l0' Block U' ROBINSON'S ADDTTION TO WILLISTON, according to the map or plat thereof, as recorded in
Plat Book 3, Page(s) 8, of the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

AND, LESS AND EXCEPT:

Lot l2' Block U' ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, according to the map or plat thereof, as recorded in
Plat Book 3, Page(s) 8, of the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

File Number: C'l'-|5-l t65 DoubleTlm60

73



l-nJlllrro

Attachment E:

Legal Description and Boundary Survey

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

74



EXHIBIT A

A PORTION OF ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK
3, PAGE 8, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA, LYING SOUTH OF COUNTY ROAD 316
(SW 12TH AVENUE) (RIGHT OF WAY WIDTH VARIES), AND LYING EAST OF U.S. HIGHWAY 41 (SW 7TH
STREET) (RIGHT OF WAY WIDTH VARIES), ALL LYING IN THE NW % OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 1.3 SOUTH,
RANGE 19 EAST, LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 7, SAID POINT BEING THE CENTERLINE
INTERSECTION OF SAID COUNTY ROAD 316 AND U.S. HIGHWAY 41; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH
BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 7 AND THE CENTERLINE OF COUNTY ROAD 31.6, 5.87"27'1-4"E., A DISTANCE
OF 80.52 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH BOUNDARY AND CENTERLINE, S.02"28,55"W., A
DISTANCE OF 64.65 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID COUNTY ROAD 316;
THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE, S.87'30'3OUE., A DISTANCE AF 41.1,T4 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING. THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE THE FOLLOWING
THREE coURSES: s.87"30'54"E., A DISTANCE oF 321.40 FEET; THENCE N.02"36'16"E., A D|STANCE oF
24.63 FEET; THENCE 5.87"27'47"E, A DISTANCE OF 172.52 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST BOUNDARY OF
BLOCK D, BLOCK K, BLOCK S AND ADJACENT TO PLATTED RIGHT OF WAY, PER PLAT OF AFOREMENTIONED
ROBISON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON; THENCE DEPARTING THE SOUTH RIcHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY
ROAD 316, ALONG SAID WEST BOUNDARY, S.OO"12'].2"W., A DISTANCE OF 2579,77 FEET TO A POINT ON
THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF THE N.W. % OF SAID SECTION 7; THEN DEPARTING SAID WEST BOUNDARY,
ALONG SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY, N.88'45'40"W., A DISTANCE OF 933.69 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST

RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF AFOREMENTIONED U.S. HIGHWAY 47; THENCE DEPARTING THE SOUTH
BOUNDARY OF THE N.W. % OF SAID SECTION 7, ALONG THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY
41, N.OO"12'51"E., A DISTANCE OF 2OL5.27 FEET TO THE S.W. CORNER OF LANDS DESCRIBED AS PARCEL

D lN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 960, PAGE 18 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE
DEPARTING THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY 41, ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID
PARCEL D, 5.87"27'I9"E,, A DISTANCE OF 44O.O2 FEET TO THE S.E. CORNER OF SAID PARCEL D,

N.OO"O5'47"E., A DISTANCE OF 560.83 FEETTO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID LANDS CONTAINING 49.41
ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

t =nEtn==FltnE,tnE.

Legal Description

07 -T3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADD

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S AD DITION

07 -13-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -I3.T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -73-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -73-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-79 ROBINSON'S AD DITION

07 -I3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -73-L9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
. 219 NOIITH NEWNAN STITEET 4'" FLOOR. ..IACKSONVILLE, I.'L 32202.

. PH()N!]: 904-337-6324. FAX: 904-322-8424.

Parcel lD

0531900E01

0631900E02

0631900E03

0531900E04
0631900E05

0631900E06
0531900E07
0631900E08
0531900E09
0531900E10
0631900E11

0631900E12
0631900E13

0631900E14

75



/4 =-Eln==FllnE,r'lE.
0631900E15

0631900E16
0631_900E17

0631900E18
0531900E19
0631900E20
0631900E21

0531900E22
0631900E23

0531900E24
0631900E25

0631900E26
o63L900E27
0631900E28
0631900E29
0631900E30
0531900E31
0631900E32
0531900F01
0531900F14
0531900F15
0631900F16
0631900F17
0631900F18
0631900F19
0531900F20
0531900F21
0531900F24
0631900F25
0631900F26
063r900F27
0631900F28
0631900F29
0631900F30
0631900F31
0631900F32
0631900G14
0631900G15
0631900G16
0531900G17
0631900G18

07 -13-L9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -73-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -t3-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -I3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07.L3-T9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3.I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -I3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-t9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -L3-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -I3-L9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3.T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-19 ROBt NSON',S ADDtTtON
07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07-13-L9 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -T3-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -t3.I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -73-79 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -73-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07-13-19 ROBINSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-79 ROBTNSON'S AD DtTtON

07 -T3-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTION

07 -I3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -I3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

. 219 NORTH NEWNAN STREET 4"',t'LOOll ..IACKSONVILLE,I'L 32202.. PH()N!]: 904-337-6324. EAX: 904-322-8424.

76



t =-EtnEEFltnE,tnE.
0631900G19
0631900G20
0631900G21
0631900H01
0531900H02
0631900H03
0631900H04
0631900H05
0631900H06
0631900H07
0631900H08
0631900H09
0631900H10
0531900H11
0631900H12
0631900H13
0631900H14
0631900H15
0631900H15
0531_900H17

0631900H18
0531900H19
0631900H20
0631900H21
0631900H22
0631900H23
0631900H24
0531900H25
0631900H26
0631900H27
0631900H28
0631900H29
0631900H30
0531900H31
0631900H32
0531900t01
0631900r02
0631900t03
0631900t04
0631_900t05

0631900t06

07 -L3-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTION

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -73-79 ROB| NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -73-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -I3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -73-L9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -I3-t9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION

07 -73-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -T3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -!3-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-t9 ROBt NSON',S ADDtTtON

07 -T3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07-13-19 ROBINSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -I3-T9 ROBI NSON'S AD DITION

07 -13-t9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -I3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION

07 -!3-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -I3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -T3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

- 2I9 NOITTH Ntr\TNAN STREET 4'' F-LOOR -.IACKSONVILLE, !'L 32202-
. l']HONll: 904-337-6324 - IrAX: 904-322-8424-

77



/4 EnEt-=EFllnE,lr'lE.
0631900t07
0531900t08
0531900r09
0631900r10
0631900t11
0531900r12
0631900t13
0631900t14
0631900r15
0631900t15
0631900t17
0631900t18
0631900r19
o63L900122

0631900r23
0631900t24
0631900t2s
0631900t25
0631900t27
0631900t28
0631900129

0631900t30
0631900t31
063r.900t32
0631900J01

0631900J02

0631900J03

0631900J04
0531900J05

063r.900J06

0631900J07
0631900J08
0631900J09

0531900J10
0531900J11
0631900J12

0631900J13

0631900J14
0631900J15
0631900J16
0631900J17

07 -t3-r9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -73-L9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S AD DtTtON

07 -T3-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-L9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07.I3-I9 ROBI NSON'S AD DITION

07 -I3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-T9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -T3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07.L3.I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07.13-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -t3-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtO N

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-79 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -T3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07.L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -I3-Tg ROBI NSON 
iS ADDITION

07 -13-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3.79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

- 2I9 NORTH NEWNAN STREET 4:'' FLOOII. -.IACKSONVILLE, !'L 32202-
. PHONFI: 904-337-6324. FAX: 904-322-8424"

78



/4 =nEtn==FltnE,FtE.
0631900J18

0631900J19

0631900J20

0531900J21

0531900J22

0631900J23

0631900J24

0531900J2s

0631900J26

0631900J27

0531900J28

0631900J29

0631900J32

0631900T01
0631900T02
0531900T03

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -I3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -t3-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -13-79 ROBINSON'S ADDITION

07 -I3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-L9 ROBt NSON'S ADDITtON

07 -13-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07.L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -73-L9 ROBINSON'S ADDtTtON
07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -T3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -t3.L9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

. 219 NOITTH NEWNAN STREET 4"'F-LOOR ..IACKSONVILLE, I.'L 32202.
" PH()N!]: 904-337-6324. FAX: 904-322-8424.

79



l--f-
_l

i!
;;;i
E.

mo
=oz
:{
I

=o<=<z
o?
9=
ao
-o-eo=
-_46-

z
od
9
m

i

6

E

l-

ig;

. EXCEPiON

!i
I

SH;i:
6elil

"6:
I

o

9

F
I

o

ao
o

$ql!tBttr i+ in i+

iEiq
oooo

,U+dFEoEooo@OASeSoo.. :.

"rts89..:9R
IE*iiEq"."
sEEE;;c:H
! -i:Barg
< -3-"i9

t ' -dR
6sE

ts ei-

G

3
i1*r"Eoe

:eiii$;i
d 'SFi;i
I iasli
i A-

+P-d

;llitlrtil";I=ic 833
E- E aE-

*i
ia

,l lttrti; ini
Fi -- 3*R;=tTS
5; ddrBi4d;F
Jl +cF!l99rs
o! s i.:i::3i
cF -le:;EF '-

;e €!;i3 +

i* ::B*rs
fr

5

o

o
oo423;hg
;N

-o
o

o

-e!
*q-E;ie

?92-1J9d
i93s
6dr-i9id>-z

*e6
a

I

!

riql q

itF;
";dEr EPiE

I

:iiEFc!

Feili € xI6:rr's

--+-

;::F
1!t

!qq

,i-tX

q

I

'aNUE(

.66

c
J

_l

N.a.

_l ;
N

o

m

_l

;---i L

i
I
I

N.E.

b

B

!

I

I

:

!

a
R

I

!

t

I

d

@@@*@* @g;is c

aEp j
P. !ii
selEs
ielFE

r3!Bi

i:iii
;*5ii

Fiilr

71Zl1

R.M. BARRINEAU6b,

-AI{DASSoCIAEa

BOUNDARY AND
TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY FOR:

COVINGTON DEVE[OP'vIENT

80



--,-JEPTo

Attachment F:

FAA Review Application

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 34

81



9115122, 10:30 AM Project Submission Success<br>Project Name: AE EN-000746809-22

< oE/AAA

Project Submission Success
Project Name: AE EN-000746809-22

Project AE EN-000746809-22 has been submitted successfully to the FAA.

Your filing is assigned Aeronautical Study Number (ASN):
2022-ASO-35225-OE

Please referto the assigned ASN on all future inquiries regarding this filing.

Please return to the system at a later date for status updates.

It is the responsibility ofeach e-filerto exercise due diligence to determine ifcoordination ofthe proposed
conslruction or alteration is necessary with their state aviation department. Please use the link below to contact

your state aviation department to determine their requirements:
State Aviation Contacts

To ensure e-mail notifications are delivered to your inbox please add norepty@faa.gov to your address book. Notifications sent from fhis address are system generated
FAA e-mails and replies to this address will NOT be read or forwarded for review. Each system generated e-mail witt contain specific FAA contact information in the text of

the message.

ffi Fedoral Avlation
Admlnlstratlon

https://oeaaa.faa.gov/oeaaa/external/eFiling/locationAction jsp 1t282



9115122, 10:30 AM Project Submrssion Success<br>Project Name: AE EN-000746809-22

https://oeaaa.faa.gov/oeaaa/external/eFilin g/locationAction jsp 2t283



r-D.JllPro

Attachment G:

Master Use Plan Exhibits

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 35

84



5E6Z{1

PD-1
BERKLEY OAKS

SUBDIVISION

- - 
? --{4-

lAl

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

JACKSONVILLE, FL
AE ENGINEERNG INC

l-rL

tr

.lrc3l

ffi

,- 
-1rc3]"
&

:F3lDlrsgal€dt!,ileF1frS
{4lllJe1{3lL 1j: rr:dlr FLrbE
srlllhtE mtanIEF(PlD

rdlltgasttstfitL.rFlhqn

-.4-

lil

_1rc21
/.4--

cML EltFlUElrF I LltlB F|.f,lo{lll€
sftFflrc toolslflllntm/EEs

PRELIMINARY---T6'iFitF-
CONSTRUCTION

tq

R

9
E

9

5
E
3

Gtr4l

DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS
POENNAL

DEWLOPMENT AREA

d

@
@

@

ldlg..@

GmoPw@ turcmdbE
r G6u (FO

ffidr|c MNs MP6i F)

0mf6r nu t'r M[ [Qm

i dsrE/mecc^llurG

EtudrdrE/meG

Nl.NtF
|..l@EffiRbE

a BM E cdEs m 
^ 

WRFE etu.
m a s@-rurlY6dn((s)
N {uLr-rarr 6rhn{ (c)

@ ouuro tol

E dqr.v@e^€c)
Edhd!@nD'g'ilRi,ffir,trffig-

Dtu 6ffi4 l]Nr - ar. d/*

lEA -^., 4., .f, '0., . f R t

rm$oros

=----

85



PD_2
BERKLEY OAKS

SUBDIVISION

S]]IE ANALYSIS MAP

AE ENGINEERNG INC.
JACKSONVILLE, FL

FIE S:!-l€jtilillq Flqitff{'rirHc,sD1l:::dilfr#6
g|t.ikeststar|{{E!glr

tlll-tlrtg,h lf itrtFaFqn

r-r-

JEI'rO
cML EIIFnEE||TF I Lr{B Fr-til0{rll€

sJm/ElnE l€orsltlrns€Rr/E8s

PRELIMINARY
rc-iFat-

coNSTRUCTIOt'l

\
\

ls4l

\

--\ 
t 

-,r'- -
--'.-..t'.t:----

--: -- \.--..-.-\ _.*

--'\

gf
1

,4J

,I\ 
)

/\ \ 1
I

I

^:--"^1 \ )
\L

L

I

I

-- 
.::--4-;=---,--=:--E

*muBbr

Hldloscs4scM

rfeGc $'L d4F: &D

hDR4@c $'L 64e 
^E

fr4Firur dE*qftY
Hfficsme EF

ro
R@MmABW

16$0dS

=----l sE 1'- 16

86



PD-3BERKLEY OAKS
SUBDIVISION

UTLITY SERVICE PLAN

AE ENGINEERNG INC
JACKSONVILLE, FL

$rruss4dtaqrdh Flrriff

sE kiElsrtrlruqrPlnrill*g,tsJhlfirdbqHhsn

r-.r
JET'rO
gIO'RNE

PRELIMINARY
{-iFoE-
GONSTRUGTIOT

E
E

E

leNaMl

*JI
ffi1lrcZ

-$

I

FN;l

87



ORDINANCE NO.7O3

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP
OF THE CITY OF WILTISTON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN PURSUANT TO AN APPLICATION BY
covlNGToN FPC, LLC. FOR 47.9 +/- ACRES TDENT|FIED AS NUMEROUS PARCELS (ATTACHED AS
EXHIBIT A) ON THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF THE IEVY COUNW PROPERTY APPRAISER, UNDER
THE AMENDMENT PROCEDURES ESTABLISHED IN CHAPTER T.63, FLORIDA STATUTES;
CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE CTASSIFICATION FROM COMMERCIAL TO MIXED USE ON
CERTAIN LANDS WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF WITLISTON FLORIDA,
DESCRIBED HEREIN; PROVIDING SEVERABIIITY; PROVIDING FOR INCORPORATION ON CITY
MAPS, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, empowers the City Council of the City of
Williston, Florida, hereinafter referred to as the City Council, to prepare, adopt, implement and
amend A Comprehensive Plan;

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida, did on May7,2002, validly
approve and adopt the City of Williston Land Development Regulations; and

WHEREAS, an application, R7-2O22-O5, for an amendment, as described below, to the
Current Zoning Map of the City of Williston Comprehensive Plan has been filed with the City;

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Williston, designated as the
Local Planning Agency, did hold the required public hearing, with public notice having been
provided, on said applications for amendments, as described below;

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Williston reviewed and
considered all comments received during said public hearings and the Rezoning Report
concerning said applications for amendments, as described below and recommended approval
of the above reference applications to the City Council;

WHEREAS, the City Council did hold the required public hearings, under the provisions of
the amendment procedures established in Chapters 1-63 and 166, Florida Statutes, on said
applications for amendments, as described below, and at said public hearing, the City Council
reviewed and considered all comments received during the public hearing, including the
recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, serving also as the Local Planning
Agency.

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined and found said applications for amendments,
as described below, to be consistent with the Future Land Use Element objectives and policies,
and those of other affected elements of the City's Comprehensive plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,

88



FLORIDA, AS FOIIOWS

section l-. Application RZ-2o22-o5 by property owner to amend the city's Zoning Map
by changing the zoning classification on the following described property described in
Exhibit A, attached, from Residential Single Family to Mixed Use is hereby approved.

ection 2. Severabil ity. lf any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any
court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional or unenforceable, then all
remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 3. Future Land Use. The Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map designation
changes enacted herein shall be incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan Future Land
Use Map within 48 hours of this ordinance becoming effective.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately
Passed on first reading, this 4th day of October,2022.

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED, with a quorum present and voting by the City Council of the City of
Williston, Florida, after properly dispensing with the second reading, on final reading this 1-5th
day October,2O22.

ATTEST: CITY OF WILLISTON

LATRICIA WRIGHT
CIry CLERK

DEBRA JONES

PRESIDENT, CITY COUNCIL

KIERSTEN BALLOU

CITY ATTORNEY

89



EXHIBIT A

A PORTION OF ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK
3, PAGE 8, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNW, FLORIDA, LYING SOUTH OF COUNTY ROAD 316
(SW ].2TH AVENUE) (RIGHT OF WAY WIDTH VARIES), AND LYING EAST OF U.S. HIGHWAY 41 (SW 7TH
STREET) (RIGHT OF WAY WIDTH VARIES), ALL LYING IN THE NW % OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH,
RANGE 19 EAST, LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 7, SAID POINT BEING THE CENTERLINE
INTERSECTION OF SAID COUNTY ROAD 316 AND U.S. HIGHWAY 41; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH
BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 7 AND THE CENTERLINE OF COUNTY ROAD 316, 5.87"27'L4"E., A DISTANCE
OF 80.52 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH BOUNDARY AND CENTERLINE, S.02.28,55"W., A
DISTANCE OF 64.65 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID COUNTY ROAD 316;
THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE, S.87'30'3O"E., A DISTANCE OF 41I.1.4 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING. THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE THE FOLLOWING
THREE CoURSES: s.87'30'54"E., A DlsrANcE oF 321.40 FEET; THENCE N.02'36'j-6"E., A DtsrANcE oF
24.63FEET; THENCE 5.87"27,47"E,, A DISTANCEOF T72.52 FEETTO A POINT oN THE WEST BoUNDARY oF
BLOCK D, BLOCK K, BLOCK S AND ADJACENT TO PLATTED RIGHT OF WAY, PER PLAT OF AFOREMENTIONED
ROBISON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON; THENCE DEPARTING THE SOUTH RTGHT OF WAY LtNE OF COUNTy
ROAD 31.6, ALONG SAID WEST BOUNDARY, S.OO"T2'T2"W., A DISTANCE OF 2579.77 FEET TO A POINT ON
THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF THE N.W. % OF SAID SECTION 7; THEN DEPARTING SAID WEST BOUNDARY,
ALONG SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY, N.88'45'40"W., A DISTANCE OF 933.69 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF AFOREMENTIONED U.S. HIGHWAY 41; THENCE DEPARTING THE SOUTH
BOUNDARY OF THE N.W. % OF SAID SECTION 7, ALONG THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY
41, N.OO'12'57''E., A DISTANCE OF 20T5.27 FEET TO THE S.W. CORNER OF LANDS DESCRIBED AS PARCEL
D lN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 960, PAGE 18 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE
DEPARTING THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY 41, ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID
PARCEL D, 5.87"27'L9"E., A DISTANCE OF 440.02 FEET TO THE S.E. CORNER OF SAID PARCEL D,
N.OO'05'47"E., A DISTANCE OF 550.83 FEETTO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID LANDS CONTAINING 49.41
ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

, 
-

EnEtn==FltnE,tnE.

Legal Description

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADD

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -I3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3.19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -73-L9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-I9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION

07 -73-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -73-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07-L3-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
. 219 NORTH NEWNAN STREET 4"',FLOOR ..IACKSONVILLE, l'L 32202.. PH()Nll: 904-337-6324. FAX: 904-322-8424-

Parcel lD

0531900E01
0631900E02
0631900E03
0631900E04
0631900E05
0531900E06
0531900E07
0631900E08
0631900E09
0631900E10
0631900E11
0631900E12
0631900E13
0631_900E14

90



I EnEtn=EttnE,t-E.
0631900E15

0631900E15
0631900E17
0631900E18
0631900E19
0631900E20
0631900E21
0631900E22
0631900E23
0531900E24
0631900E25
0631"900E26

0531900E27
0631900E28
0631900E29
0631900E30
0631900E31
0631900E32
0631900F01
0631900F14
0631900F15
0631900F15
0631900F17
0531900F18
0631900F19
0631900F20
0531900F21
0631900F24
0631900F25
0631900F26
o53L900F27
0631900F28
0531900F29
063r_900F30

0631900F31
0631900F32
0631900G14
0631900G15
0631900G16
0631900G17
0631900G18

07 -T3-L9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -L3-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-L9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07-13-19 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -L3-L9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -L3-L9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -!3-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -I3-L9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -73-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -13-t9 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -T3-T9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -L3-L9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'5 ADDtTtON
07 -T3-L9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07-13-19 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -73-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -I3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -73-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -L3-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S AD DtTtON

07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -13-79 ROBI NSON'S AD DITION

. 219 NORTH NE!\NAN STITEET 4"' FLOOtt ..IACKSONVILLE, t-L 32202.. I'H()Nli: 904-337-6324. FAX: 904-322-8424"

91



, EnEInE=FllnE,ll-lE.
0631900G19
0531900G20
0531900G21
0631900H01
0631900H02
0631900H03
0631900H04
0531900H0s
0631900H06
0531900H07
0631900H08
0631900H09
0631900H10
0531900H11
0631900H12
0531900H13
0631900H14
0631900H15
0631900H15
0631900H17
0631900H18
0631900H19
0531900H20
0631900H21
0631900H22
0631900H23
0631900H24
0631900H25
0631900H26
063r900H27
0631900H28
0631900H29
0531900H30
0631900H31
0631900H32
0631900t01
0631900t02
0631900t03
0531900t04
0631900r05
0631900t06

07-13-19 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -t3-r9 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -T3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07-13-l_9 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -73-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -73-79 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -13-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -L3-19 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -73-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITIO N

07 -L3-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -73-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -73-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -I3-L9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -T3-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -73-L9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -73-79 ROBINSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtO N

07 -T3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -T3-T9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -L3.L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -I3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -73-79 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -L3-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -!3-79 ROBt NSON',S ADDtTtON
07 -13-19 ROBINSON'S ADDITION

. 219 NORTH NEWNAN STIiEET 4'' l,'LOOll ..IACKSONVILLE, 
I.-L 32202.. l'H( )NFl: 9l) 4-337 -6324 . FAX: 90 4-322-8 424.

92



, =nEtr]=EFllnE,l-E.
0631900t07
0531900t08
0531900t09
0631900t10
0631900t11
0631900t12
0631900t13
0531900t14
0631900t15
0631900t16
0631900r17
0631900r18
0531900t19
0631900r22
0631900t23
0631900t24
0531900t25
0631900r26
063I900t27
0631900t28
0631900r29
0631900t30
0631900t31
0631900t32
0631900J01

0631900J02

0631900J03

0531900i04
0631900J05

0631900J06

0531900J07
0631900J08

0531900J09

0631900J10
0631900J11

0531900J12

0631_900J13

0531900J1_4

0631900J15

0631_900J16

0631900J17

07 -t3-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -L3.T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'5 ADDtTtON
07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -t3-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07.I3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtO N

07-L3-L9 ROBTNSON',S ADDtTtON
07-13-19 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -73-19 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -t3-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -I3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -I3-I9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -T3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -73-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -T3.79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -L3-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -t3-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDITtON
07 -13-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -L3-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-T9 ROBI NSON'S AD DITION

07 -L3.79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -L3-I9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION
07 -13-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -13-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -L3-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -73-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -t3-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON
07 -I3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION
07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

. 219 NOITTH NEWNAN STREET 4'" F-LOOR ..IACKSONVILLE, F'L 32202.
- I'H()Nll: 904-337-6324 - FAX: 904-322-8424"

93



t EnEln==Fllr']E,lnE.
0631900J18
0631900J19
0631_900J20

0631900121-

0637900J22
0631_900J23

0631900J24
0631900J25

0631900J26
0531900J27
0631900J28
0631900J29
0631900J32
0631900T01
0631900T02
0531900T03

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -t3-I9 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -73-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTION

07 -73-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -73-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -73-19 ROBTNSON',S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-79 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -I3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

. 219 NOttTH NEWNAN STREET 4"'F-LOOR ..IACKSONVILLIi, t'L 32202.. l'HONll: 904-337 -6324 . llAX: 904-322-8424-

94



Date: October 412022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: SafeBuilt Florida, LLC. Contract

PREPARED BY: Laura Jones, City Planner

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

SafeBuilt Florida, LLC. provides the City of Williston with Building Official services. The contract
expired this year and the City extend a request for proposals as per our procurement policy.
SafeBuilt Florida, LLC. responded (only corporation that did) and City Staff would like to renter
into a new contract.

LEGAL REVIEW: Completed

FISCAL IMPACTS: Refer to Fee Schedule

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 2022-78 Professional Services Agreement
between the City of Williston, Florida and SafeBuilt Ftorida, LLC.

ATTACHMENTS: Resolution2022-78
Professional Services Agreement between the City of Williston, Florida and
SafeBuilt Florida, LLC.

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED DISAPPROVED

95



Date: October 4,2022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

RESOLUTION 2022.78:

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE PROFESSTONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF WILLISTON AND SAFEBUILT,
LLC, FOR BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICES; AUTHORIZING THE
APPROPRIATE PARTIES TO SIGN ANY DOCUMENTS REQUIRED TO
EXECUTE SUCH AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

REQUESTED BY: LAURA JONES, CITY PLANNER

PREPARED BY: KIERSTEN BALLOU CITY ATTORNEY

FISCAL IMPACTS: SEE ATTACHED FEE SCHEDULE

RECOMMENDED ACTION: STAFF RECOMMENDS APPROVAL

ATTACHMENTS:

CONTRACT xx RESOLUTTON 2022-78 MAP

LEASE XX CONTRACT AGREEMENT

COUNCIL ACTION:

APPROVED

DENIED

96



RESOLUTION NUMBER 2022.78

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF WILLISTON AND SAFEBUILT,
LLC, FOR BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICES; AUTHORIZING THE
APPROPRIATE PARTIES TO SIGN ANY DOCUMENTS REQUIRED TO
EXECUTE SUCH AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the City of Williston is in need of building inspection services;

WHEREAS, the City of Williston issued Request for Proposal No. BO2O22-O1, Building
Inspection Services Residential and Commercial Properties, in an effort to seek potential
qualified vendors to provide plan review, inspection and other building department
related services; and

WHEREAS, on September 13, 2022, the City of Williston's evaluation committee
convened to review and rank the prospective vendors; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the RFP, the City of Williston accepted competitive proposals
for RFP No. 802022-07, Building Inspection Services Residential and Commercial
Properties; and

WHEREAS, SAFEbuilt, LLC submitted a proposal pursuant to the above-reference RFP;
and

WHEREAS, SAFEbuilt submitted a proposed Professional Services Agreement to
memorialize the agreement between the parties regarding the services and
compensation to be rendered related to the above-referenced RFP; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager and City Council President are appropriate parties to
execute documents related to such Professional Services Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the City's best interest to authorize
the City Manager and City Council President to execute this Professional Services
Agreement, an unexecuted copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and any other
such documents as are required to enter into the Professional Services Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are all true and accurate and are hereby incorporated
herein and made a part of this resolution.

Section 2. The City Council hereby approves the Professional Services Agreement
between the City of Williston and SAFEbuilt, LLC, attached hereto and incorporated
herein as Exhibit A.

97



Section 3. The City Manager and City Council President are hereby authorized to
execute on behalf of the City such documents as are required to enter the Professional
Services Agreement.

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this _ day of September,
2022.

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

BY:
Debra Jones, City Council President

Attest, By the Clerk of the
City Council of the
City of Williston Florida:

Approved as to Form and Legality:

Latricia Wright, City Clerk S. Scott Walker, City Attorney
Kiersten N. Ballou, Asst. City Attorney

98



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

AND SAFEbuilt FLORIDA, LLC

This Professional Services Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into this _ day of
2022, by and between the City of Williston, a Florida municipal corporation ("Municipality") and SAFEbuilt Florida,
LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of SAFEbuilt, LLC, ("Consultant"). Municipality and Consultant shall be jointly
referred to as "Parties".

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Municipality issued Request for Proposal No. BO2O22-OL, Building lnspection Services
Residential and Commercial Properties, in an effort to seek potential qualified vendors to provide plan review,
inspection and other building department related services; and

WHEREAS, on September 73,2O22, the Municipality's evaluation committee convened to review and rank
the prospective vendors; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to RFP, Municipality accepted competitive proposals for RFP No. 8022022-01,
Building lnspection Services Residential and Commercial Properties (the Services); and

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
Municipality and Consultant agree as follows:

L. SCOPE OF SERVICES

Consultant will perform Services on an as-needed basis in accordance with codes, amendments and
ordinances adopted by the elected body of Municipality. The qualified professionals employed by Consultant
will maintain current certifications, certificates, licenses as required for Services that they provide to
Municipality in accordance with State of Florida, Chapter 468, Florida Statutes. Consultant is not obligated to
perform services beyond what is contemplated by this Agreement.

2. CHANGES TO SCOPE OF SERVICES

Any changes to Services between Municipality and Consultant shall be made in writing that shall specifically
designate changes in Service levels and compensation for Services. Both Parties shall determine a mutually
agreed upon solution to alter services levels and a transitional timeframe that is mutually beneficial to both
Parties. No changes shall be binding absent a written Agreement or Amendment executed by both Parties,

3. FEE STRUCTURE

ln consideration of Consultant providing services, Municipality shall pay Consultant for Services performed in
accordance with Exhibit B - Fee Schedule for Services.

4. INVOICE & PAYMENT STRUCTURE

Consultant will invoice Municipality, on a monthly basis and provide all necessary supporting documentation.
All payments are due to Consultant within 30 days of Consultant's invoice date. Payments owed to Consultant
but not made within sixty (60) days of invoice date shall bear simple interest at the rate of one and one-half
percent (I.5%) per month. lf payment is not received within ninety (90) days of invoice date, Services will be
discontinued until all invoices and interest are paid in full. Municipality may request, and Consultant shall
provide, additional information before approving the invoice. When additional information is requested
Municipality will identify specific disputed item(s) and give specific reasons for any request. Undisputed
portions of any invoice shall be due within 30 days of Consultants invoice date, if additional information is

requested, Municipality will submit payment within thirty (30) days of resolution of the dispute.

Page 1 ol 1299



5. TERM

This Agreement shall be effective on the latest date on which this Agreement is fully executed by both Parties.
The initial term of this Agreement shall be for one (1) year. Agreement shall automatically renew for
subsequent two (2) year terms until such time as either Party notifies the other of their desire to terminate
this Agreement.

5. TERMINATION

Municipality may terminate this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement, upon thirty (30) days written
notice,withorwithoutcause. ConsultantmayterminatethisAgreement,oranypartofthisAgreement,upon
ninety (90) days written notice, with or without cause and with no penalty or additional cost beyond the rates
stated in this Agreement. ln case of such termination, Consultant shall be entitled to receive payment for
work completed up to and including the date of termination within thirty (30) days of the termination.

All structures that have been permitted, a fee collected, and not yet expired at the time of termination may
be completed through final inspection by Consultant if approved by Municipality. Consultant's obligation is

met upon completion of final inspection or permit expiration, provided that the time period to reach such
completion and finalization does not exceed ninety (90) days. Alternately, Municipality may exercise the
option to negotiate a refund for permits where a fee has been collected but inspections have not been
completed. The refund will be prorated according to percent of completed construction as determined by
Consultant and mutually agreed upon by all Parties. No refund will be given for completed work.

7. FISCALNON-APPROPRIATION CLAUSE

Financial obligations of Municipality payable after the current fiscal year are contingent upon funds for that
purpose being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made available in accordance with the rules,
regulations, and resolutions of Municipality, and other applicable law. Upon the failure to appropriate such
funds, this Agreement shall be terminated.

8. MUNICIPALIry OBLIGATIONS

Municipality shall timely provide all data information, plans, specifications and other documentation
reasonably required by Consultant to perform Services (Materials). Municipality has the right to grant and
hereby grants Consultant a fully paid up, non-exclusive, non-transferable license to use the Materials in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

9. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

Consultant shall perform the Services using that degree of care, skill, and professionalism ordinarily exercised
under similar circumstances by members of the same profession practicing or performing the substantially
same or similar services. Consultant represents to Municipality that Consultant retains employees that
possess the skills, knowledge, and abilities to competently, timely, and professionally perform Services in
accordance with this Agreement.

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Consultant is an independent contractor, and, except as provided otherwise in this section, neither
Consultant, nor any employee or agent thereof, shall be deemed for any reason to be an employee or agent
of Municipality. Municipality shall have no liability or responsibility for any direct payment of any salaries,
wages, payroll taxes, or any and all other forms or types of compensation or benefits to any personnel
performing services for Municipality under this Agreement. Consultant shall be solely responsible for all
compensation, benefits, insurance and employment-related rights of any person providing Services hereunder
during the course of or arising or accruing as a result of any employment, whether past or present, with
Consulta nt.

Consultant and Municipality agree that Consultant will provide similar service to other clients while under
contract with Municipality and Municipality acknowledges that Consultant employees may provide similar
services to multiple clients. Consultant shall at its sole discretion assign and reassign qualified employees, as

determined by Consultant, to perform services for Municipality. Municipality may request that a specific

?ag,t:2 aI 3,2100



employee be assigned to or reassigned from work under this Agreement and Consultant shall consider that
request when determining staffing. Consultant shall determine all conditions of employment for its
employees, including hours, wages, working conditions, promotion, discipline, hiring and
discharge. Consultant exclusively controls the manner, means and methods by which services are provided
to Municipality, including attendance at meetings, and Consultant's employees are not subject to the direction
and control of Municipality. Except where required by Municipality to use Municipality information
technology equipment or when requested to perform the services from office space provided by the
Municipality, Consultant employees shall perform the services using Consultant information technology
equipment and from such locations as Consultant shall specify. No Consultant employee shall be assigned a

Municipal email address as their exclusive email address and any business cards or other lDs shall state that
the person is an employee of Consultant or providing Services pursuant to a contractual agreement between
Municipality and Consultant.

It is the intention of the Parties that Consultant shall be deemed to be an agent of the Municipality for
purposes of Section 768.28 Florida Statute.

11. ASSIGNMENT AN D SUBCONTRACT

Neither party shall assign all or part of its rights or obligations under this Agreement to another entity without
the written approval of both Parties; consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. Notwithstanding the
preceding, Consultant may assign this Agreement in connection with the sale of all or substantially all of its
assets or ownership interest, effective upon notice to Municipality, and may assign this Agreement to its
parent, subsidiaries or sister companies (Affiliates) without notice to Municipality. Consultant may
subcontract any or all of the services to its Affiliates without notice to Municipality. Consultant may
subcontract any or all of the services to other third parties provided that Consultant gives Municipality prior
written notice of the persons or entities with which Consultant has subcontracted. Consultant remains
responsible for any Affiliate's or subcontractor's performance or failure to perform. Affiliates and
subcontractors will be subject to the same performance criteria expected of Consultant. Performance clauses
will be included in agreements with all subcontractors to assure quality levels and agreed upon schedules are
met.

12. INDEMNIFICATION

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Municipality, its
elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers and others working on behalf of Municipality, from
and against any and all third-party claims, demands, suits, costs (including reasonable legal costs), expenses,
and liabilities ("Claims") alleging personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and/or property damage,
but only to the extent that any such Claims are caused by the negligence of Consultant or any officer,
employee, representative, or agent of Consultant. Consultant shall have no obligations under this Section to
the extent that any Claim arises as a result of Consultants compliance with Municipal law, ordinances, rules,
regulations, resolution, executive orders or other instructions received from Municipality.

To the fullest extent permitted by law and without waiver of governmental immunity, Municipality shall
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Consultant, its officers, employees, representatives, and agents, from
and against any and all Claims alleging personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and/or property
damage, but only to the extent that such Claims are caused by (a) the negligence of, or material breach of any
obligation under this Agreement by, Municipality or any officer, employee, representative, or agent of
Municipality or (b) Consultant's compliance with Municipal law, ordinances, rules, regulations, resolutions,
executive orders or other instructions received from Municipality. lf either Party becomes aware of any
incident likely to give rise to a Claim under the above indemnities, it shall notify the other and both Parties
shall cooperate fully in investigating the incident.

13. LIMITS OF LIABILITY

EXCEPT ONLY AS MAY BE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN, CONSULTANT EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL

WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY

l:taS1t1 j 61 72101



WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ERROR-FREE OPERATION,
PERFORMANCE, ACCURACY, OR NON.INFRINGEMENT. EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT ARISING FROM
MUNICIPALIry'S PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS FOR SERVICES, IN NO EVENT SHALL CONSULTANT OR MUNICIPALITY
BE LIABLE TO ONE ANOTHER FOR INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, RELIANCE, EXEMPLARY, OR

SPECIAL DAMAGES INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, DAMAGES FOR LOST PROFITS, LOST REVENUES, LOST

DATA OR OTHER INFORMATION, OR LOST BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY, REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION,
WHETHER IN CONTRACT, INDEMN|ry, NEGLIGENCE, WARRANry, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT, EVEN IF ADVISED

OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF

ANY REMAINING REMEDY. EXCEPT WITH RESPECT TO PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS FOR SERVICES, IN NO EVENT

SHALL THE LIABILITY OF MUNICIPALITY OR CONSULTANT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT FROM ANY CAUSE OF

ACTION WHATSOEVER (REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT OR UNDER

ANY OTHER LEGAL THEORY, AND WHETHER ARISING BY NEGLIGENCE, INTENTIONAL CONDUCT, OR

OTHERWISE) EXCEEDTHE GREATER OF THE AMOUNT OF FEES PAIDTO CONSULTANT PURSUANTTO THIS AGREEMENT

oR THE AVAILABLE LIMITS OF CONSULTANTS TNSUMNCE (SUCH LtMtTS DEFTNE MUN|CIPAL MAXTMUM LtABtLtTy TO

THE SAME EnENTAS lF MUNICtPAL|TY HAD BEEN OBLTGATEDTO pURCHASETHE pOLtCtES).

14. INSURANCE

A. Consultant shall procure and maintain and shall cause any subcontractor of Consultant to procure
and maintain, the minimum insurance coverages listed below throughout the term of this
Agreement. Such coverages shall be procured and maintained with forms and insurers acceptable
to Municipality. ln the case of any claims-made policy, the necessary retroactive dates and extended
reporting periods shall be procured to maintain such continuous coverage.

B. Worker's compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by applicable law for any employee
engaged in the performance of work underthis Agreement, and Employer's Liability insurance with
minimum limits of one million dollars (S1,000,000) bodily injury each accident, one million dollars
(51,000,000) bodily injury by disease - policy limit, and one million dollars ($1,000,000) bodily injury
by disease - each employee. Worker's compensation coverage in "monopolistic" states is

administered by the individual state and coverage is not provided by private insurers. lndividual
states operate a state administered fund of workers compensation insurance which set coverage
limits and rates. Monopolistic states: Ohio, North Dakota, Washington, Wyoming.

C. Commercial general liability insurance with minimum combined single limits of one million dollars
(S1,000,000) each occurrence and two million dollars (52,000,000) general aggregate. The policy
shall be applicable to all premises and operations. The policy shall include coverage for bodily injury,
broad form property damage, personal injury (including coverage for contractual and employee
acts), blanket contractual, independent Consultant's, and products. The policy shall contain a

severability of interest provision and shall be endorsed to include Municipality and Municipality's
officers, employees, and consultants as additional insureds.

D. Professional liability insurance with minimum limits of one million dollars (S1,000,000) each claim
and two million dollars (S2,000,000) general aggregate.

E. Automobile Liability: lf performance of this Agreement requires use of motor vehicles licensed for
highway use, Automobile Liability Coverage is required that shall cover all owned, non-owned, and
hired automobiles with a limit of not less than S1,000,000 combined single limit each accident.

F. Municipality shall be named as an additional insured on Consultant's insurance coverage.
G. Prior to commencement of Services, Consultant shall submit certificates of insurance acceptable to

Municipality.

15. THIRD PARTY RELIANCE

This Agreement is intended for the mutual benefit of Parties hereto and no third-party rights are intended or
implied.

16. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Municipality shall retain ownership of all Materials and of all
work product and deliverables created by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement. The Materials, work product
and deliverables shall be used by Consultant solely as provided in this Agreement and for no other purposes

?;tge 4 ol L2.102



without the express prior written consent of Municipality. As between Municipality and Consultant, all work
product and deliverables shall become the exclusive property of Municipality when Consultant has been
compensated for the same as set forth herein, and Municipality shall thereafter retain sole and exclusive rights
to receive and use such materials in such manner and for such purposes as determined by it. Notwithstanding
the preceding, Consultant may use the Materials, work product, deliverables, applications, records,
documents and other materials provided to perform the Services or resulting from the Services, for purposes
of (i) benchmarking of Municipality's and other client's performance relative to that of other groups of
customers served by Consultant; (ii) improvement, development marketing and sales of existing and future
Consultant services, tools and products; (iii) monitoring Service performance and making improvements to
the Services. For the avoidance of doubt, Municipality Data will be provided to third parties, other than
hosting providers, development consultants and other third parties providing services for Consultant, only on
an anonymized basis and only as part of a larger body of anonymized data. lf this Agreement expires or is

terminated for any reason, all records, documents, notes, data and other materials maintained or stored in
Consultant's secure proprietary software pertaining to Municipality will be exported into a CSV file and
become property of Municipality. Notwithstanding the preceding, Consultant shall own all rights and title to
any Consultant provided software and any improvements or derivative works thereof.

Upon reasonable prior written notice, Municipality and its duly authorized representatives shall have access
to any books, documents, papers and records of Consultant that are related to this Agreement for the
purposes of audit or examination, other than Consultant's financial records, and may make excerpts and
transcriptions of the same at the cost and expense of Municipality.

17. CONSULTANTACCESS TO RECORDS

Parties acknowledge that Consultant requires access to Records in order for Consultant to perform its
obligations under this Agreement. Accordingly, Municipality will either provide to Consultant on a daily basis
such data from the Records as Consultant may reasonably request (in an agreed electronic format) or grant
Consultant access to its Records and Record management systems so that Consultant may download such
data. Data provided to or downloaded by Consultant pursuant to this Section shall be used by Consultant
solely in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

18. CONFIDENTIALITY

Consultant shall not disclose, directly or indirectly, any confidential information or trade secrets of
Municipality without the prior written consent of Municipality or pursuant to a lawful court order directing
such disclosure.

19. CONSULT PERSONNEL

Consultant shall employ a sufficient number of experienced and knowledgeable employees to perform
Services in a timely, polite, courteous and prompt manner. Consultant shall determine appropriate staffing
levels and shall promptly inform Municipality of any reasonably anticipated or known employment-related
actions which may affect the performance of Services. Additional staffing resources shall be made available
to Municipality when assigned employee(s) is unavailable.

20. DISCRIMINATION & ADA COMPLIANCE

Consultant will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, age, sex, disability, national origin or any other category protected by applicable federal or state law.
Such action shall include but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer,
recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation,
and selection for training, including apprenticeship. Consultant agrees to post in conspicuous places, available
to employees and applicants for employment, notice to be provided by an agency of the federal government,
setting forth the provisions of Equal Opportunity laws. Consultant shall comply with the appropriate
provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (the "ADA"), as enacted and as from time to time amended,
and any other applicable federal regulations. A signed certificate confirming compliance with the ADA may
be requested by Municipality at any time during the term of this Agreement.

?ay,,e S o{ .},?-

103



21. E-VERI FYIVERI FICATION OF E M PLOYM E NT STATUS

Pursuant to FS 448.095, Consultant certifies that is it registered with and uses the U.S. Department of
Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by
Consultant during the term of the Agreement. Consultant shall not knowingly employ or contract with an
illegal alien to perform work under this Agreement and will verifil immigration status to confirm employment
eligibility. lf Consultant enters into a contract with a subcontractor to perform work or provide services
pursuant to the Agreement, Consultant shall likewise require the subcontractor to comply with the
requirements of FS 448.095, and the subcontractor shall provide to Consultant an affidavit stating that the
subcontractor does not employ, contract with or subcontract with an unauthorized.alien. Consultant will
maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration of its contract with owner. Consultant is prohibited from
using the E-Verify program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while this
Agreement is being performed.

22. SOLICITATION/H I RI N G OF CONSU LTANT'S EM PLOYEES

During the term of this Agreement and for one year thereafter, Municipality shall not solicit, recruit or hire,
or attempt to solicit, recruit or hire, any employee or former employee of Consultant who provided services
to Municipality pursuant to this Agreement ("Service Providers"), or who interacted with Municipality in
connection with the provision of such services (including but not limited to supervisors or managers of Service
Providers, customer relations personnel, accounting personnel, and other support personnel of
Consultant). Parties agree that this provision is reasonable and necessary in order to preserve and protect
Consultant's trade secrets and other confidential information, its investment in the training of its employees,
the stability of its workforce, and its ability to provide competitive building department programs in this
market. lf any provision of this section is found by a court or arbitrator to be overly broad, unreasonable in
scope or otherwise unenforceable, Parties agree that such court or arbitrator shall modify such provision to
the minimum extent necessary to render this section enforceable. ln the event that Municipality hires any
such employee during the specified period, Municipality shall pay to Consultant a placement fee equal to 25%
of the employee's annual salary including bonus.

23. NOTTCES

Any notice under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed sufficient when presented in person,
or sent, pre-paid, first class United States Mail, or delivered by electronic mail to the following addresses:

lf to Municipality: lf to Consultant
Terry Bovalrd, City Manager
City of Williston
50 NW Main Street
Williston, FL32596
Citv. Manager@Will istonfl.ore

Matt K. Causley, COO

SAFEbuilt, LLC

10720 Caribbean Blvd, Suite 550
Cutler Bay, FL 33189

Jessica Adkins, Account Manager
Email : iladkins@safebuilt.com

24. FORCE MAJEURE

Any delay or nonperformance of any provision of this Agreement by either Party (with the exception of
payment obligations) which is caused by events beyond the reasonable control of such party, shall not
constitute a breach of this Agreement, and the time for performance of such provision, if any, shall be deemed
to be extended for a period equal to the duration ofthe conditions preventing such performance.

25. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

ln the event a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, and if said dispute
cannot be settled through negotiation, Parties agree first to try in good faith to settle the dispute by mediation,
before resorting to arbitration, litigation, or some other dispute resolution procedure. The cost thereof shall
be borne equally by each Party.

P:sgt:- (> r:i L2104



26. ATTORNEY'S FEES

ln the event of dispute resolution or litigation to enforce any of the terms herein, each Party shall pay all its
own costs and attorney's fees.

27. AUTHORITYTO EXECUTE

The person or persons executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they are fully authorized to sign
and so execute this Agreement and to bind their respective entities to the performance of its obligations
hereunder.

28. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Consultant shall refrain from providing services to other persons, firms, or entities that would create a conflict
of interest for Consultant with regard to providing the Services pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall
not offer or provide anything of benefit to any Municipal official or employee that would place the official or
employee in a position of violating the public trust as provided under Municipality's charter and code of
ordinances, state or federal statute, case law or ethical principles.

29. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES

Consultant verifies that it and any of its affiliates are not scrutinized companies as identified in Section
287.135, F.S. ln addition, Consultant agrees to observe the requirements of Section 287.!35, F.S., for
applicable sub-agreements entered into for the performance of work under this Agreement. Pursuant to
Section 287.135, F,S., the Municipality may immediately terminate this Agreement if the Consultant, its
affiliates, or its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Consultant, its
affiliates, or subcontractors are placed on any applicable scrutinized companies list or engaged in prohibited
contracting activity during the term of the Agreement. As provided in Subsection 287.135(3), F.S., if federal
law ceases to authorize these contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative.

30. AND ETHICS R IREME

This Agreement is subject to State of Florida Code of Ethics. Agreement may be subject to Code of Ethics and
investigation and/or audit by the lnspector General. Accordingly, there are prohibitions and limitation on the
employment of Municipal officials and employees and contractual relationships providing a benefit to the
same.

31. PUBLIC RECORDS

Pursuant to section 119.O77, Florida Statures, Consultant shall comply with Florida's Public Records Act,
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and agrees to:
A. Keep a nd mainta in a ll pu blic records that ordinarily a nd necessa rily would be req uired by M un icipa lity to

keep and maintain in order to perform Services under this Agreement.
B. Upon request from Municipality's custodian of public records, provide copies to Municipality within a

reasonable time and public access to said public records on the same terms and conditions that
Municipality would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter
119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.

C. Ensure that said public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure
requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law.

D. Meet all requirements for retaining said public records and transfer, at no cost, to Municipality all said
public records in possession of Consultant upon termination of this Agreement and destroy any duplicate
public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, disclosure
requirements. All records stored electronically must be provided to Municipality in a format that is

compatible with the information technology systems of Municipality.

E. IF CONSULTANT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER
119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONSUTTANT'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC

RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF

?;tgt:7 of L?"105



PUBLTC RECORDS AT (352) 528-3060, CtTy.CLERK@W|LL|STONFL.ORG, 50 NW
MAIN STREET, WITLISTON, FLORIDA 32595.

32. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE

The negotiation and interpretation of this Agreement shall be construed under and governed by the laws of
the State of Florida, without regards to its choice of laws provisions. Exclusive venue for any action under this
Agreement, other than an action solely for equitable relief, shall be in the state and federal courts serving
Municipality and each party waives any and all jurisdictional and other objections to such exclusive venue.

33. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement and any amendments or task orders may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. For purposes
of executing this Agreement, scanned signatures shall be as valid as the original.

34. ELECTRONIC REPRESENTATIONS AND RECORDS

Parties hereby agree to regard electronic representations of original signatures as legally sufficient for
executing this Agreement and scanned signatures emailed by PDF or otherwise shall be as valid as the original.
Parties agree not to deny the legal effect or enforceability of the Agreement solely because it is in electronic
form or because an electronic record was used in its formation. Parties agree not to object to the admissibility
of the Agreement in the form of an electronic record, or a paper copy of an electronic document, or a paper
copy of a document bearing an electronic signature, on the ground that it is an electronic record or electronic
signature or that it is not in its original form or is not an original.

35. WAIVER

FailuretoenforceanyprovisionofthisAgreementshall notbedeemedawaiverofthatprovision. Waiverof
any right or power arising out of this Agreement shall not be deemed waiver of any other right or power.

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, along with attached exhibits, constitutes the complete, entire and final agreement of the
Parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and shall supersede any and all previous agreements,
communications, representations, whether oral or written, with respect to the subject matter hereof.
lnvalidation of any of the provisions of this Agreement or any paragraph sentence, clause, phrase, or word
herein or the application thereof in any given circumstance shall not affect the validity of any other provision
of this Agreement.

lN WITNESS HEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Agreement to be executed in their respective names on
the dates hereinafter enumerated.

SAFEbuilt FLORIDA, LLC CITY OF WILLISTON

Name: Name:

By:By:

Title

Date

Title:

Date

t?;:ge: 8 t:f 1,2106



EXHIBIT A - LIST OF SERVICES

1. LIST OF SERVICES

/ Buildine Official Services

Be a resource for Consultant team members, Municipal staff, and applicants
Help guide citizens through the complexities of the codes in order to obtain compliance

- Monitor changes to the codes including state or local requirements and determine how they may
impact projects in the area and make recommendations regarding local amendments
Assist Municipal staff in revising and updating municipal code to comply with adopted requirements
Provide Building Code interpretations for final approval
Oversee our quality assurance program and will make sure that we are meeting our agreed upon
performance measurements and your expectations
Provide training for our inspectors on Municipality adopted codes and local amendments as needed
Oversee certificate of occupancy issuance to prevent issuance without compliance of all
departments
Attend staff and council meetings as mutually agreed upon
Responsible for reporting for Municipality - frequency and content to be mutually agreed upon
Responsible for client and applicant satisfaction
Work with Municipal staff to establish and/or refine building department processes

- lssue stop-work notices for non-conforming activities related to provided services - as needed

./ Building, Electrical, Plumbing, and Mechanical lnspection Services

Consultant utilizes an educational, informative approach to improve the customer's experience.

- Perform code compliant inspections to determine that construction complies with approved plans
Meet or exceed agreed upon performance metrics regarding inspections
Provide onsite inspection consultations to citizens and contractors while performing inspections
Return calls and emails from permit holders in reference to code and inspection concerns
ldentify and document any areas of non-compliance
Leave a copyof the inspection ticket and discuss inspection resultswith site personnel

/ Plan Review Services

Provide plan review services electronically or in the traditional paper format
Review plans for compliance with adopted building codes, local amendments or ordinances
Be available for pre-submittal meetings by appointment
Coordinate plan review tracking, reporting, and interaction with applicable departments
Provide feedback to keep plan review process on schedule
Communicate plan review findings and recommendations in writing
Return a set of finalized plans and all supporting documentation
Provide review of plan revisions and remain available to applicant after the review is complete

'/ Permit Technician Services

Provide qualified individuals to perform the functions of this position
Facilitate the permitting process from initial permit intake to final issuance of permit
Review submittal documents and request missing information to ensure packets are complete
Provide front counter customer service as necessary
Answer questions concerning the building process and requirements at the counter or over the
phone

Form and maintain positive relationships with Municipal staff and maintain a professional image
Determine permit fees based on Municipal fee schedule as established by ordinance, lf requested
Work with Municipal Clerk to facilitate Freedom of lnformation Act (FOIA) requests, if requested
Provide inspection scheduling and tracking to ensure code compliance

Paiic 9 oi X2107



Act as an office resource to inspectors in the field
Process applications for Municipal Boards and Commissions - if requested
Provide input, tracking and reporting to help increase efficiencies

./ code E Services

Customize our approach at the direction of Municipal Council/Board and staff
Customize services in compliance with applicable Municipal code and ordinance requirements
Proactively work with Municipality and its citizens to maintain a safe and desirable community
Respond to and investigate code violations as provided/requested in writing by a municipal official
Post violation notices and provide initial citizen notifications and follow-up inspections
Address specific code enforcement issues at the direction of Municipality
Provide monthly written reports
Assist in the preparation ofcases for court appearances, provide presentations and attend meetings
as requested
Participate in educational activities and customer service surveys related to code enforcement
Provide professional recommendations for code revisions - as needed
Make presentations to Municipal boards as requested
Provide agreed upon reports to demonstrate our performance against set measurements

/ Reporting Services
r' Consultant will work with Municipality to develop a mutually agreeable reporting schedule and

format

2. MUNICIPALOBLIGATIONS

Municipality will issue permits and collect all fees
Municipality will provide Consultant with a list of requested inspections and supporting documents
Municipality will intake plans and related documents for pick up by Consultant or submit electronically
Municipality will provide a monthly activity report that will be used for monthly invoicing
Municipality will provide zoning administration for projects assigned to Consultant
Municipality will provide codes books for front counter use

Municipality will provide office space, desk, desk chairs, file cabinets, local phone service, internet, use
of copier and fax

- Municipality will adopt a fee schedule for building department services agreed upon by both Parties

3. TIME OF PE MANCE

Consultant will perform Services during normal business hours excluding Municipal holidays
Services will be performed on an as-requested basis

- Services will be performed two (2) days a week, four (4) hours per day minimum
Building Official will be on-site at the Municipal offices Tuesday and Thursday or as mutually agreed upon
Building Official will be available to Municipality by text, cell phone and email (TX)

Permit Technician will be on-site two (2) days a week; Tuesday and Thursday for four (4) hours a day

- lnspectors will be dispatched on an as-requested basis

lnspectors will be dispatched daily or as-requested
Consultant representative(s) will be on-site weekly based on activity levels
Consultant representative(s) will be available by cell phone and email
Consultant representative(s) will meet with the public by appointment

- Additional lnspectors will be dispatched on an as-needed basis

Page 10 of 12108



Deliverables

INSPECTION SERVICES Perform inspections within twenty-four (24) business hours of receiving
inspection request(s) from Municipality

TWO HOUR INSPECTION

WINDOW
Permit holder may request a phone call the morning of the inspection with a

two (2) hour ETA inspection time
MOBITE RESUTTING Provide our inspectors with field devices to enter results immediately
PRE-SUBMITTAT MEETINGS Provide pre-submittal meetings to applicants by appointment
PLAN REVIEW

TURNAROUND TIMES
Provide comments within the following timeframes:
Day 1 = first full business day after receipt of plans and all supporting documents
Proiect Tvpe:
/ Single-family within
'/ Multi-family within
/ Small commercial within

(under SZw in valuation)
./ Large commercial within

First Comments
5 business days

10 business days
10 business days

20 business days

Second Comments
5 business days or less

5 business days or less

5 business days or less

10 business days or less

Page 1:L of 12109



EXHIBIT B - FEE SCHEDULE FOR SERVICES

7. FEE SCHEDULE

'/ Municipality and Consultant will review the Municipal Fee Schedule and valuation tables annually to
discuss making adjustments to reflect increases in the costs incurred by Consultant to provide Services.

'/ Beginning January OI,2024 and annually thereafter, the hourly and flat rates listed shall be increased
based upon the annual increase in the Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics or successor
thereof, Consumer Price lndex (United States City Average, All ltems (CPl-U), Not Seasonally adjusted, All
Urban Consumers, referred to herein as the "CPl") for the Municipality or, if not reported for the
Municipality the CPI for cities of a similar size within the applicable region from the previous calendar
year, such increase, however, not to exceed 4%o per annum. The increase will become effective upon
publicationoftheapplicableCPl data. lftheindexdecreases,therateslistedshall remainunchanged.

Service Fee Schedule:
Building Official

Commercial & residential plan review services
for all trades
Commercial & residential inspections for all
trades

80% of Municipal Permit Fee as established
by ordinance or resolution

Additional Services - Upon Request
After Hours/Emergency lnspection Services 5125.00 per hour - two (2) hour minimum

Code Enforcement Services S7S.00 per hour - two (2) hour minimum

Permit Technician Services 568.00 per hour - two (2) hour minimum

Time tracked includes roundtrip travel time between Consultant's location and
Municipality/inspection site.

P;gc 12 oi 12110



Date: 9/2612022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

RESOLUTION 2022.79:

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COTJNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF WILLISTON AND 1220G
DEVELOPMENT, LLC, REGARDING UTILITY SERVICES TO
MORALES/GODDARD RV PARK; AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATE
PARTIES TO SIGN ANY DOCUMENTS REQUIRED TO EXECUTE SUCH
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

REQUESTED BY: LAURA JONES, CITY PLANNER/ DONALD BARBER, PUBLIC
WORKS SUPERVISOR

PREPARED BY: KIERSTEN BALLOU CITY ATTORNEY

F'ISCAL IMPACTS: TBD

RECOMMENDED ACTION : Staff recommends approval.

ATTACHMENTS:

CONTRACT RESOLUTTON 2022-79 XX MAP

LEASE CONTRACT AGREEMENT

APPROVED

DENIED

xx

XX

COUNCIL ACTION:

111



112



RE SOLUTION NUMBER 2022 -7 9

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF'
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF WILLISTON AND 1220G
DEVELOPMENT, LLC, REGARDING UTILITY SERVICES TO
MORALES/GODDARD RV PARK; AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATE
PARTIES TO SIGN ANY DOCUMENTS REQUIRED TO EXECUTE SUCH
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the property owner of Morales/Goddard RV Park has received Special
Exception Order SE 03-17, dated December 19,2017, by Board of Commissioners of
Levy County for an RV Park; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Levy Count5r concurrently approved
associated Ordinances 2OL7-O20 and 2OI7-O21; and

WHEREAS, the City of Williston provided a letter, dated August 28, 2Ol7 , to the
Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of Levy County in support of the proposed
project indicating it is willing and able to provide water and sewer to the proposed
project; and

WHEREAS, the Levy County Special Exception Order SE O3-I7 contains
Condition No. 10, stating "The Applicant must provide an agreement for commitment of
provision of water and sewer service to the Subject Property approved by the City of
Williston prior to any site work or commencement of construction on the Subject
Property. A commitment for water/sewer capacity provided by the City of Williston will
not be sufficient to comply with this condition."; and

WHEREAS, the City began meetings witr.t. l22OG Development, LLC, (hereinafter
"Developer"), on February 2, 2022 on the subject property to discuss a potential list of
public services which could be provided by the City of Williston to the proposed project
which included water and sewer; and concluded August 23, 2022 meeting that the City's
Engineer, Wright-Pierce, would need to augment their existing conditions water model
to model various water service and onsite well models and connection alternatives
specific to the Morales/Goddard RV Park proposed project; and

WHEREAS, the Cit5r's Engineer, Wright-Pierce, would also need to determine
sewer system conveyance options to convey wastewater from the subject site
(Goddard/Morales) along with several other potential development sites in and around
the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager and City Council President are appropriate parties
to execute documents related to such Memorandum of Understanding; and

113



WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the City's best interest to
authorize the City Manager and City Council President to execute this Memorandum of
Understanding, an unexecuted copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are all true and accurate and are hereby incorporated
herein and made a part of this resolution.

Section 2. The City Council hereby approves the Memorandum of Understanding
between the City of Williston and 122OG Development, LLC, attached hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

Section 3. The City Manager and City Council President are hereby authorized to
execute on behalf of the City the Memorandum of Understanding.

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this 4th day of October,2022

CITY OF WTLLISTON, FLORIDA

BY:
Debra Jones, City Council President

Attest, By the Clerk of the
City Council of the
City of Williston Florida:

Approved as to Form and Legality:

Latricia Wright, City Clerk S. Scott Walker, City Attorney
Kiersten N. Ballou, Asst. City Attorney

114



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") is entered into by and between the
City of Williston (the "City"), and the 1220G Development, LLC (the "Dcvclopcr")
regarding the potential development of real property owned by Jose Morales and Helen
Goddard and locatedin the general vicinity of Highway 27 andproximate to the eastern
boundary of Levy County (known as Morales/Goddard RV park), described in attachments
to this MOU (the "Project").

WHEREAS, the property owner has received Special Exception Order SE 03-17,
dated December 19, 2017, by Board of Commissioners of Levy Counfy for an RV Park;
and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Levy County concumently approved
associated Ordinances 20 l7 -020 and 20 | 7 -02 I ; and

WHEREAS, the City of Williston provided a letter, dated August 28, 2017, to the
Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of Ler,y County in support of the Project
indicating it is willing and able to provide water and sewer to the Project;and

WHEREAS, the Levy County Special Exception Order SE 03-17 contains Condition
No. 10, stating "The Applicant must provide an agreemcnt for commitmcnt of provision of
water and sewer scrvice to the Subject Property approvcd by the City of Williston prior to any
site work or commencernent of construction on the Subject Property. A commitment for
water/sewer capacity provided by the City of Williston will not be sufficient to comply with
this condition."; and

WHEREAS, the City began meetings with Developer, on February 2,2022 on the
subject property to discuss a potential list of public services which could be provided by the
City of Williston to the Project which included water and sewer; and concluded August 23,
2022 meeting that thc City's Engineer, Wright-Pierce, would need to augment their existing
conditions water model to model various water service and onsite well models and
connection altematives specific to the Morales/Goddard RV Park Project; and

WHEREAS, the City's Engineer, Wright-Pierce, would also need to determine
sewer system conveyance options to convey wastewater from the subject site
(Goddard/Morales) along with several other potential development sites in and around the
City.

NOW, THERBFORE, the City, and the Developer agree as follows

l. Purpose. The purpose of this MOU is to outline, a final proposed plan to be camied
out by the City and Developer to formally execute a Development Agleement to provide
water and sewer sctvices to the Projcct. It is the intent of the parties that an agrecrncnt will

115



bc necessary for City of Williston Council to approve public utility scrvices for watcr and
scwcr and Levy County approval of a formal site plan for devclopment of thc Project by the
Board of Commissioners of Levy County under approvcd Spccial Usc Exccption 03-17.

2. Design/Engineering work: Water/Sewer Services - Wright-Pierce has completed an
existing condition water model for the City of Williston. They have requested additional
services to model out various well water and connection scenarios to determine the appropriate
configuration for service delivcry of water to the Project due to the location of the Project being
outside of the City boundary. Wright-Pierce has also requested additional services to determine
alternatives fbr conveyance for sewer fi'om the Project to several other proposed sites around the
City. The Cify is requesting the Developer pay for the additional seruices of Wright-Pierce to
detcrmine the final services delivery of water and sewer systems to complete a formal
Development Agreement for these specific Seruices to be provided by the City.

3. Costs: City presented to Developer costs of $9,760 Additional Seryices for Wlight-
Pierce to perform services for water scenarios and up to $15,574 to perform services for sewer
scenarios. Developer agrees to reimburse City for its out-of-pocket water of $9,760 and a portion
of sewer of Not To Exceed $15,574 maximum cost, which shall be shared with other
developments under consideration by the City.

4. Timing: During such period Wright-Pierce is performing its work plus an additional
90 days after completion of Consultant's work for finalization of the Development Services
agreement for public services, the City and Developer will agree that such final determination
of scrvices is predicated on conclusion of and acceptance of Wright-Pierce Additional Seryices
scope of work proposed by City to Developer to satisfy City's requirements to formalize the
Development Selices agreement with Developer.

5. Commitment: City agrees to Developer that it will be the services provider for
water and sewer selices to their Project. City further will cornmit that this MOU will be
recognized temporarily for the period in Item 4, that it has registered the Developer's Project
to resetve City's utility services of water and sewer fbr determination of delivery,
conveyance, and capacity for its Project while Design/Engineering work is being completed
and City/Developer ftnalize Development Services agreement from final consultant
conclusions.

6. Cooperation: City and Developer under this MOU, are establishing this
al'rangement for their mutual benefit to cooperatively work together to provide water and
sewer services outside of the City boundaries to servc Developer's Projcct and create value
to the City for utilities services and future development projects. This MOU is intended to
sct-fbrth the intcnt, understandings and indepcndent obligations between the City, and the
Developer in their joint effort to bring about the Utility Services Development Agreemenr
for the Morales/Goddard RV development on the tenns ontlined herein.

7. General Provisions. Nothing herein is intended or shall be construed to confer upon
any person or entity other than the parties hereto and their successors or assigns, any rights

116



or remedies under or by reason of this MOU. Neither this MOU, nor any rights or
obligations hereunder may be assigned, delegated or conveyed by either party without the
prior written consent of the other Party. This MOU may be executed in counterpafts, each
of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one
agreement, and the transmission of signature pages to this MOU by facsimile or as portable
document format attachments to electronic mail shall constitute effective execution and
delivery of this MOU and may be used in lieu of original signature pages of this MOU or
all purposes.

[signature page followsl

117



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this MOU as of the date
set forth above.

1220G Development, LLC

By:
Name: Iameslzzo
Title: Manager

City of Williston

By:
Name:
Title:

77323786v2

118



October 4,2022

CITY COUNCIL AGBNDA ITEM

TOPIC: RESOLUTION # 20Z}-BI-PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR
MISCELLANEOUS PROF'ESSIONAL SERVICES FOR THE PLANNING
DEPARTMENT WITH WRIGHT-PIERCE, INC

PREPARED BY: Laura Jones, City Planner

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

The Planning department has requested a proposal from Wright-Pierce for task by task
assignments as needed. These tasks will include, private development reviews, code
interpretations, and planning assistance.

The City already has a General Services contract with Wright-Pierce to perform various projects
on a task by task basis. Upon approval, Wright-Pierce and its subconsultants will provide
professional engineering services requested by the City-Planner or City Manager.

Wright-Pierce will also provide professional engineering services under the role of City Engineer
Representative assigning Mr. Nickle to work in City Hall to assist City Staff on engineering-
related matters as they arise.

LEGAL REVIEW: NA

FISCAL IMPACTS: Not to exceed $25,000

REC OMMENDED AC TION : Approve Resolution #2022-81

ATTACHMENTS: Proposal
Resolution 2022-81

ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

119



RESOLUTTON 2022-81

A RESOTUTION OF THE CITY OF W|IUSTON, LEVY COUNTY, FLOR|DA, ESTABLTSHTNG

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE WILLISTON CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT
FOR PROJECT-SPECIFIC PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR MISCELLANEOUS
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT WITH WRIGHT-PIERCE, lNC.; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, The City of Williston entered into a general Professional Consulting Services
agreement with Wright-Pierce, lnc. on July 7,2OL7; and

WHEREAS, The City of Williston extended this general Professional Consulting Services
agreement on July 79,2O22; and

WHEREAS, The City of Williston desires to enter into an agreement with Wright-Pierce, lnc. for
a project-specific Professional Consulting Services for Miscellaneous Professional Services for
the Planning Department; and

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it will be mutually beneficial for City planning staff to
consult with Wright-Pierce regarding development matters affecting the City such as

development reviews, code interpretations, planning assistance, grant application assistance,
and other matters as they arise; and

WHEREAS, Wright-Pierce has submitted a proposal to be authorized between the City of
Williston and Wright-Pierce, lnc.; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED by the City of Williston, Levy County,
Florida, that:

SECTION 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as
being true and correct and are incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 2. The City Council hereby accepts the quote and contract from Wright-Pierce, lnc
hereby exhibited as Exhibit A.

SECTION 3. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption

This space left intentionally blank

120



PASSED AND ADOPTED on

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

2022

Debra Jones, President

Williston City Council

ATTEST: Latricia Wright

City Clerk

121



WnrcHr-PrERcE 
-Engineering a Better Environment

4720 Sollsbury Rood, Suite 2l g

Jqcksonville, FL32256
888.621.8156 | wrighl-pierce.com

September xx,2022

Terry Bovaird, lnterim City Manager
City of Williston, FL

50 North West Main Street
Williston, FL. 32696

SUBJECT: Professional Services Task Order for City Engineering Services

Dear Mr. Bovaird,

Wright-Pierce appreciates the opportunity to submit this Task Order to provide City Engineering Services to
continue our support of the frequent and ongoing needs of City staff. As requested, we will be providing
services to address a wide range of short and long-term needs including engineering and planning
consultation, operations and maintenance, grant funding and development review as they arise within the
City.

Projecl Bockground qnd Understonding
The City has a General Services Contract with Wright-Pierce to perform various projects on a task-by-task
basis. To date, Wright-Pierce has performed 18 larger task assignments; and under one of these tasks, our
miscellaneous services task, we assisted the Public Works Department with over l-6 smaller
assignments/consultations. Wright-Pierce has also just submitted a proposal to the City's Planning
Department to provide review services on the City's behalf for private development, along with other
requested planning services and grant assistance.

Even with these various contracting mechanisms in place, City staff routinely needs additional support and
input from a professional engineer. Planning and Public Works staff have requested that Wright-Pierce take on
a more prominent role by acting in the capacity of a City Engineer on a part-time basis. Mr. Walt Nickel would
serve in that role as a Wright-Pierce employee. Mr. Nickel is a registered Florida Professional Engineer (PE)and
has over 37 years of design and consulting experience for public and private projects and lives and works in

Gainesville. Over the past year, the City's administrative staff, Planning Department, and Public Works
Department have been working closing with Walt on many of the recent task assignments. He is at City Hall on
nearly a weekly basis for various meetings, attends many of the City council meetings, and is well-versed in the
planning and infrastructure improvement activities within the City.

Scope of Services
Wright-Pierce will provide professional engineering services under the role of City Engineer Representative by
assigning Mr. Nickel to work in City Hall to assist City staff on engineering-related matters as they arise. These
services may include:

122



Seplember xx,2O22
Terry Bovoird, lnlerim Clly Monoger
Poge 2 ol 4

o Conducting minor plan and development reviews.
r Providing recommendations on land development and planning codes
r Consulting with department heads on engineering-related issues.
o Assisting with capital improvement planning and budget estimating for City infrastructure projects
o Attending staff meetings.
o Assisting with grant opportunities from an engineering perspective and applying for grants.
. Coordinating with City staff overseeing private developments within the City.
o Coordinating with City staff overseeing public infrastructure within the City service areas.
r Attending up to two City council meetings per month.
o Attending up to one City Planning and Zoning meeting per month.

These City Engineer services are intended to aid City staff and supplement other Wright-Pierce task order
assignments butwill not replacethem. Our City Engineer Representative will be ableto provide much of the
technical and professional input needed by the City, but they may still need to rely on others within Wright-
Pierce forthe wide range of expertise that Wright-Pierce provides. Technical experts such as hydraulic
engineers, pump designers, water system modelers, wastewater engineers, cad technicians, etc. many still be
needed, and if so, those services will be billed under this City Engineer agreement as additional services, or
underthe other miscellaneous services task order assignments as deemed most appropriate.

Mr. Nickel will serve as the main City Engineer Representative on behalf of Wright-Pierce. However, others
may also fillthis role as mutually agreed upon by both parties.

Deliverqbles
The City Engineer Representative will provide a status report on ongoing activities to City Council at each of
their regularly scheduled council meetings. Other deliverables will be provided as appropriate for each
assignment/service performed under this contract.

Schedule
Since several City department meetings are held on Tuesday and Thursday afternoons, City staff recommends
that the City Engineer Representative work in City Hall for four hours per day on those afternoons. These
hours and days can be adjusted up ordown to betteraccommodate City needs.

Fee Estimote
Estimated Base Fee

City Engineer Representative - ln-City Services, 4 hours per day, two days per week,48 weeks peryear

= $XX,XXX per year.

City Engineer Representative - City Council Meeting Attendance, 2 hours per meeting, two times per
month, 11 months per year = SXX,XXX per year.

WnrcHr-Prrnce .-
Engineering a Better Environment

a

a

123



Seplember xx,2O22
Terry Bovoird, lnlerim Cily Monoger
Poge 3 of 4

City Engineer Representative - Planning and Zoning Meeting Attendance, 2 hours per meeting, one
time per month, 11 months per year = $XX,XXX per year.

Additional Services as Needed:

Billed at hourly rates.

a

a

We will complete these services on a time and material basis unless additionalcompensation is approved by
the City. lnvoices will be based on our employees' hourly rate times a 3.15 multiplier. Expenses will be billed at
cost and subconsultants costs will be billed at cost plus a 10% markup. Wright-Pierce will invoice the City
monthly and provide a monthly summary report of the services provided during each monthly invoicing
period.

Clorificolion
The City Engineer Representative(s) and others providing Additional Services as needed remain employees of
Wright-Pierce and receive all compensation, benefits and management oversight from Wright-Pierce. They are
not considered employees of the City. Wright-Pierce will provide staff with appropriate computers and cell
phones. However, the City shall provide a workspace for the City Engineer Representative, preferably within
City Hall, on the days noted under Schedule. This workspace shall include internet access and access to a copy
machine and printer.

We appreciate the opportunity to present this proposal and to serve the City of Williston. Should you have any
questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me at (407) 785-5194 or at the
e-mail address below.

Sincerely,

WRIGHT-PIERCE

Dennis Davis, PE

Senior Client Service Manager
Denn is.davis @wright-pierce,com

Walter A. Nickel, PE

Senior Project Manager
wa lt er. n ickel@wrieht-p jerce. com

Miscellaneous Professional Services Task Order for the Planning Department

WnrcHr-Prrncr 
-Engineering a Better Environment

Contract Acceptance Signatures

124



t

Seplember xx,2O22
Terry Bovoird, lnledm Clly Monoger
Poge 4 of 4

Engineer: Wright-Pierce, lnc.

By;

Signature

Date: August 25,2022,
Ryan Wingard, PE

Vice President

Wnrcnr-Prrncr -

Owner: City of Williston

By;

Signatu re

Date

Debra Jones

City Council President

Engineerlng a Better Environment

125



WnrcHr-PrERcE 
-Engineering a Better Environment

4720 Solisbury Rood, Suile 21 9

Jqcksonville, tL32256
888.621.8156 | wright-pierce.com

September 23,2022

Laura Jones, Community Development & Grants Manager
City of Williston, FL

50 North West Main Street
Williston, F1.32696

SUBJECT: Task Order for Miscellaneous Professional Services for the Planning Department

Dear Laura,

Wright-Pierce would Iike to thank the City of Williston (City) for the opportunity to submit this Task Order to
provide professional engineering services associated with supporting the City's Planning staff on miscellaneous
project needs.

Project Bockground ond Understonding
The City has a GeneralServices Contract with Wright-Pierce to perform various projects on a task-by-task
basis. One of these projects is a miscellaneous services agreement with the Public Works department related
to operating, maintaining, and improving its public infrastructure for which they need regular input from a

professional engineering consultant. The Planning Department has similar needs related to private
development reviews, code interpretations, and planning assistance. Therefore, the Planning Department has

requested a proposal from Wright-Pierce for similar task-by-task assignments as needed.

Scope of Services
Wright-Pierce and its subconsultants will provide professional engineering services on a task-by-task basis as

requested by the City Planner or City Manager. Upon receiving each request, we will formalize the requested
scope of work, deliverables, fee, and schedule in an email backtothe City.

Deliverobles
Wright-Pierce will provide deliverables as required for each task assigned underthis contract

Fee Eslimqle
We propose to complete the services on a time and material basis for an amount not to exceed 525,000
unless additional compensation is approved by the City. We will bill the City on an hourly basis based on our
employees' hourly rate times a 3.15 multiplier. Expenses will be billed at cost and subconsultants costs will be
billed at cost plus a L0% markup. Wright-Pierce will bill the City monthly and provide a monthly summary
report of the services provided during each monthly invoicing period.

126



9/23/2022

[ouro Jones, Communily Developmenl & Gronls Monoger
Poge 2 ol 2

Schedule
Wright-Pierce will continue to support the City as needed. For each assignment Wright-Pierce will provide the
City a proposed schedule for that assignment.

We appreciate the opportunity to present this proposal and to serve the City of Williston. Should you have any
questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me at (407) 185-5194 or atthe
e-mail address below.

Sincerely,

WRIGHT-PIERCE

/.azoU'
Dennis Davis, PE

Senior Client Service Manager
dennis.davis@w risht-0ierce.com

Walter A. Nickel, PE

Senior Project lVanager
walter nickel sht-pierce.com

Miscellaneous Professional Services Task Order for the Planning Department

Task Order Acceptance Signatures

Engineer: Wright-Pierce, I nc.

By

tu re

Date; August 22,2022,
Ryan Wingard, PE

Vice President

WnrcHr-Prrncr:

Owner: City of Williston

By:

Signature

Date

Debra Jones

City Council President

Engineering a Better Environment

127




